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Olympia Spinning & Weaving Mills Limited

VISION STATEMENT

We aim to offer high quality yarn both in Pakistan and abroad by
continuously improving our products quality by keeping the most
technologically advanced production machinery.

MISSION STATEMENT

We strive to achieve market leadership through technological edge,
distinguished by quality and customer satisfaction, and emphasis on
employees long term welfare and ensure adequate return to
shareholders.

We further wish to contribute to the development of the economy and
the country through harmonized endeavour.
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Olympia Spinning & Weaving Mills Limited

DIRECTORS REPORT

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their Annual Report along with audited accounts of the Company
for year ended June 30, 2008 for your consideration and approval.

OPERATING REVIEW:

The operating results of the period under review has resulted in net loss before taxation of Rs.226,064/-
with net sales of Rs.2,742 477 972/- as compared lo the last year's sale of Rs.2,231,539,290/- which shows
an increase of 22.89% over last year's sale.

For Year ended For Year ended
June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007
Rupees Rupees

Appropriation of profit is as under:
Net (loss) before taxation (226,064 ) (19,708,514)
Taxation: (14,802,586) (14,301,725)
Net loss for the year after taxation (15,028,586) (34,010,239)
Unappropriated (loss) brought forward {23,950,375) 4,809,506
Actuarial Loss recognised outside income statement (2,388,203} (2,086,700)
Amount of incremental depreciation arising
due to surplus on revaluation of fixed assets
transferred to accumulated profit 6,970,206 7,337,059
Accumulated (loss) carried forward (34,397,021) (23,950,374)
EPS (1.25) (2.83)

FINANCIAL RESULTS:

The financial results for the year ended June 30, 2008 have resulted in net loss after tax of Rs.15,028,650/=.The
operating profit has been increased from Rs.139,331,837/= to Rs.141,346,343/= as compared to last year.
Gross profit percentage has decreased from 9.62% to 8.03% as compared with the previous comresponding
period. This decrease in gross profit is due to increase in local and imported cotton rates, increase in energy
rates and increase in wage rates. The combined effect of escalating interest rates and increasing short-
term borrowings because of adverse market conditions, has led to an increase in financial charges on
borrowed funds, thereby depressing the net profitability of your Company. The current financial results would
have in profitability if the textile industry wouldn’t have liquidity crunch, high markup and raw cotton cost
since last three years.

During the last quarter of year the cotton prices has risen sharply causes us to change our cost formula
from annual weighted average to monthly average method so that the effect of high prices of cotton in stock
does not effec] the current year financial results. The company also adopted alternative approach for
recognizing actuarial gains/{losses) to recognized whole amount outside income statement through “Statement
of Recognized Income and Expenses” in "Statement of Changes in Equity” as disclosed in note 5.1.

To minimize the effect of increasing interest rates, we entered into Cross currency swaps contracts during
the year but unfortunately due to our dispute with the Bank over many vague and undisclosed terms and
condilions as disclosed in note 14 we have obtained stay order from Sind High Court against settlements
of these contracts & accordingly no provision has been made in the accounts, on the basis of which the
auditors have gives their remarks in Auditors report.
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Olympia Spinning & Weaving Mills Limited

FUTURE PROSPECTS:

At present Pakistan's spinning sector is at a crucial peint due to large obstacles to growth in the national
economy. The sharp increase in the cotton rates, markup rates and continued escalations in the cost of
energy is creating an extremely demanding environment for all spinners. In addition the yarn market is
dominated by a bearish sentiment, while the spinning industry is facing stiff competition from heavily
subsidized overseas competitors.

To overcome the negative financial effects of theses incidents and liquidity crunch due to expansion and
continuous increase in the financial cost and input prices, the management has negotiating rescheduling
of long term finances with Soneri Bank Limited and Askari Bank Limited. We are also negotiating with other
banks for a Term Finance Facility of approximately Rs.200.00 M with a grace period of 2 years and balance
payments to be made in 5 years.

The Company at present exporting approximately more than 50% of our total sale to Hong Kong, Korea,
Bangladesh, Colombia and USA and hope to reach the level of more than 75% exports of our tolal sales.
We also have been awarded FPCCI's Export Award named Best Export Performance award in cotton yarm.

CORPORATE GOVERMNANCE:

The Directors of the Company are aware of their responsibilities under the Code of Corporate Governance,
incorporated in the Listing Regulations of the Stock Exchanges in the country under instructions from Security
& Exchange Commission of Pakistan. We are taking all the necessary steps to ensure Good Corporate
Governance in the Company as required by the Code.

As a part of the compliance of the Code, we confirm the following:

1- The enclosed financial statements, ?repared by the management of the Company present fair!k'
its state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

2- Proper books of account have been maintained by the Company as required by the
Companies Ordinance, 1984.

3- Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements
and accounting statements are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

4- International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan have been followed in preparation
of financial statemenis and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed .

5- The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored.

B- There are no significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

7- There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate govermance, as detailed
in the listing regulations.

8- Key operating and financial data of last six years is annexed.

8- During the year, 6 board meetings were held and the attendance by each direct:::lr is given hereunder:

Name of Director No of Meetings Attended
Mian M. Wagar Monnoo
Mrs. Ghazala Waqar
Mr. Siraj Sadig Monnoo
Mrs. Hina Siraj
Mr. Syed Ayazuddin
Mr. Muhammad Anwar Saigal
Mr. Imran Monnoo
Mr. Khalid Gulzar

wWir|m| |||
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Olympia Spinning & Weaving Mills Limited

10- There were no shares bought and sale by the Directors, CEO, CFO, Company secretary and their
spouses and minor children during the year.

11- The pattem of shareholding and additional information required by the Code of Corporate Governance
is annexed. :

AUDITORS:

You are requested to appoint auditors for the year 2008-2009 and fix their remuneration. The present auditors
M/s. Mushtaq & Co., Charted Accountants retires and offer themselves for re-appointment.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

| would like to place on record the Co-operation shown by our Bankers for their support and without their
co-operation, the present results could not have been achieved. The loyalty and devotion of the Staff
members and the workers towards the Company is also one of the major factor for achieving the present
results.

For and on behalf of the Board

Karachi: 27" September, 2008 . WACAR MONNOO
(Chief Executive/Director)
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Olympia Spinning & Weaving Mills Limited

STATISTICAL SUMMARY OF KEY OPERATING & FINANCIAL DATE FOR LAST SIX YEARS.

(Rupees in (M))

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
OPERATING RESULTS
Sales net 274248 223154 188293 124058 123939 1,051.70
Gross profit. 220.34 214.83 205.94 126.04 56.64 95.45
Operating expenses 82.59 79.91 64.70 42.00 2454 18.43
Operating profit 141.35 139.33 142.60 84.75 3210 7r.o1
Finance cost 141.57 159.04 122.91 71.22 ar.B3 65.07
Others expenses - net (W.P.P.F) - - 1.04 0.71 - 0.52
Profitf{Loss) before tax (0.23) (19.71) 19.70 13.54 (25.73) 9.83
Taxation 14.80 14.30 18.04 (4.87) 23.66 6.83
Profit /(Loss) after tax (15.03)  (34.01) 1.66 18.40  (49.39) 3.01
FINANCIAL POSITION
Paid-up Capital 120.00 120.00 24.00 24.00 24,00 24.00
Retained eamings/(loss) (49.04) (32.35) 20.07 546 (14.28) 3371
Total equity 133.85 99.63 32.39 29.46 9.72 57.71
Long term finances 306.42 370.08 435.68  406.57 23227 25099
Deferred liability 422 3.52 12.96 19.34 35.14 17.92
Current liabilities 1,079.33 1,076.00 299403 1,073.39 1,153.85 385.84
Total assets 244169 225631 222064 211330 1,78586 1,103.44
Fixed assets (Gross) 2,208.75 195964 1,869.25 1,639.60 1,094.05 991,88
Accumulated depreciation 544 40 48582 427.99 370.08 327.23 289.16
Fixed assets (Net) 166435 147382 144127 126952 766.82 T02.73
Long term deposits 21.50 22.74 21.28 2721 16.40 20.65
Current assets 705.21 756.45 74590 80526 875.47 380.06
RATIOS
Gross pofit to sales % (Excluding Depreciation) 10.10 12.23 14.23 13.57 BAT 12.87
Gross pofit to sales % (Including Depreciation) 8.03 9.63 10.94 10.16 4.57 9.08
Cost of sales to sales % (91.97) 90.37 89.06 89.84 95.43 90.92
Net profit to sales % (0.01) (0.88) 1.05 1.09 2.08 77
Eaming/(loss) per shares in Rs. (1.25) (2.83) 0.14 T.67 (20.58) 1.25
Earning/{loss) to equity % (0.17) (19.78) 60.82 4596 (264.57) 17.04
Adamin expenses to net sales % 1.33 1.42 1.63 1.35 1.42 1.75
Return on fixed assets before tax % (0.01) (1.34) 1.37 1.07 (3.36) 1.40
Return on total assets before tax % (0.01) (0.87) 0.89 0.64 (1.44) 0.89
Debt equity ratio % 45,10 57.01 59.00 66.31 63.63 68.94
Current ratio 0.65 0.70 0.75 0.75 0.76 1.20
Quick ratio 0.26 0.24 0.28 0.26 0.23 0.73
Turn over to fixed assets times 1.65 1.51 1.31 0.98 1.62 1.50
Turn over to total assets times 1.12 0.99 0.85 0.59 0.69 0.95
OPERATING RESULTS
Dividend per share Rs. - - 1.00
Dividend per share % - - 10.00
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Olympia Spinning & Weaving Mills Limited

FORM - A

PATTERN OF HOLDING OF THE SHARES HELD BY THE

SHAREHOLDERS AS AT JUNE 30, 2008

MNo. of Share . Total

Holders Shursholding Shares Held

129 Holding from 001 to 100 8.435

110 -—-go-- 101 500 27,566

16 -—do--- 501 1,000 16,000

as -—do--- 1,001 5,000 104,779

1 SR o 5,001 10,000 82,546

5 -—dio-— 10,001 15,000 65,500

2 P s [ 15,001 20,000 33,000

1 -—d--- 20,001 25,000 25,000

2 === 25,001 30,000 54,500

1 -—dig--- 30,001 35,000 34,500

2 -—do-- 35,001 40,000 73,500

3 -—do--- 40,001 45,000 131,000

2 =g 45,001 50,000 100,000

1 -—do--- 60,001 65,000 61,750

1 e [ 65,001 70,000 70,000

1 -—-do--- 95,001 100,000 100,000

1 - 100,001 105,000 100,500

2 -—-do--— 120,001 125,000 245,179

1 ——dg--- 175,001 180,000 180,000

3 -=-Jg--- 245,001 250,000 750,000

1 -—-dg--- 295,001 300,000 300,000

1 -==J0--- 325,001 330,000 330,000

1 —=-f--- 1,550,001 1,555,000 1,550,025

2 —--{g--- 3,000,001 4 500,000 7,556,225

334 12,000,000

Categories No. of Shares

Shareholders Shareholders Held Percentage
Individuals 325 11,785,100 898.21%
Financial Institutions 3 87,450 0.73%
Joint stock Companies 5 127.250 1.06%
Abondoned Properties 1 200 0.00%

334 12,000,000 100.00%
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Olympia Spinning & Weaving Mills Limited

PATTERN OF HOLDING OF THE SHARES HELD BY THE
SHAREHOLDERS AS AT JUNE 30, 2008

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

SHAREHOLDER'S CATEGORY Total Shares _ Percentage
Associated Companies, Undertakings and related parties (Name-wise). Mone MNone
M.IT. and L.C.P

(1) Mational Bank of Pakistan, Trustee Department (NIT) 42855 0.36
(2) NBP Trustee - NI{U)T(LOC) Fund 44145 0.37
(3) Investment Corporation of Pakistan 450 0.00
Directors, CEO and their Spouse and Minor Childern (Name-wise)

(1) M.Wagar Monnoo Chairman / Director 4374570 36.45
{2} Mrs. Ghazala Waqgar Director 3181660 26.51
(3) Mr. Siraj Sadiq Monnoo  Director 1550025 12.92
(4) Mr. Syed Ayazuddin Director ; 330000 275
(5) Mr. Muhammad Anwar Saigal Director 300000 2.50
(6) Mrs. Hina Siraj Director 61750 0.51
(7) Mr. Imran Monnoo Director 500 0.00
Executives None MNone
Public Sector, Joint Stock Companies and Corporations

(1) Fateh Textile Mills Ltd. 50 0.00
(2) Y.S. Securities & Services (Pvt) Ltd 4500 0.04
(3) Harvest Smartrend Securities (Pvt) Ltd 200 0.00
(4) Stock Master Securities (Pvt) Ltd 2000 0.02
(5) Ismail Igbal Securities (Pvt) Ltd 120500 1.00
Abandoned properties & Other Companies.

(1) Abandoned properties organisation. 200 0.00
Shareholders holding 10% or more voting interest

in the Listed Companies

(1) M. Wagar Monnoo. 4374570 36.45
(2) Mrs. Ghazala Waqgar 3181660 26.51
(3) Mr. Siraj Sadiq Monnoo. 1550025 12.92
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Olympia Spinning & Weaving Mills Limited

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30TH JUNE, 2008

This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance contained in listing
Regulation No.37 of the Karachi Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Lid for the purpose of establishing a framework
of good governance, whereby a listed company is managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate
governance.

The Company has applied the principles contained in the Code in the following manner:

1.

10.

1.

12.

13.

14,

The Company encourages representation of independent non-executive directors on its Board. At
present the board include three non-executive directors.

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director in more than ten listed
companies, including this Company.

To the best of our knowledge all the resident directors of the Company are registered as
taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in payment of any loanto a banking company, a
DFIl or an NBFI or, being a member of a stock exchange, has been declared as a defaulter by that
stock exchange.

No casual vacancies arose on the Board during the year.

The Company has prepared a ‘Statement of Ethics and Business Practices', which is signed by
directors and employees.

The Management has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate Strategy and significant
policies of the Company and the same is in the process of approval by the Board. A complete
record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved
or amended has been maintained.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions,
inctudingEappoinlment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment
of the CEO and other executive directors, have been taken by the Board.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, the Board met at least once
in every quarter. Written notices of the Board meetings along with the agenda and working papers
were circulated at least seven days before the meetings. The minutes of the meetings were
appropriately recorded and circulated.

The Board arranged orientation courses for its directors during the year to apprise them of their
duties and responsibilities.

The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of
Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment, as determined
by the Chief Executive E

The directors’ report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the
Code and it fully describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by CEQO and CFO before approval
of the Board.

The directors, CEQ and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other
than that disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.

The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the Code.
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Olympia Spinning & Weaving Mills Limited

15.

16.

17
18.

18,

20.

The Board has formed an audit committee. It comprises three members, of whom two are non-
executive directors.

The meetings of the audit committee were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of
interim and final results of the Company and as required by the Code.The terms of reference of
the committee have been formed and advised to the committee for compliance.

The Board has set-up an effective intemal audit function.

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the quality control review programme of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold
shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with Intemnational
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed
that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

We confirm that all other material principles contained in the Code have been complied with.

FOR AND BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(M. WAQAR MONNOO)
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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Olympia Spinning & Weaving Mills Limited

REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
On the Statement of Compliance with Best Praclices of the Code of Corporale Governance

We have reviewed the statement of compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate
Governance prepared by the Board of Directors of DI{mpia Spinning & Weaving Mills Limited to comply
witlh ths Listing Regulation No. 37 of the Karachi Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited where the company
is listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance is that of the Board of Directors
of the company. Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively
verified, whether the statement of compliance reflects the status of the company's compliance with the
provisions of the Code of Corporate Governance and report if it does not. A review is limited primarily to
in?;]J'rrLes g;dme company personnel and review of various documents prepared by the company to comply
with the e,

As part of our audit of financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting
and internal control system sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We have
not carried out any special review of the internal control system to enable us to express an opinion as to
whether the Board's statement on internal control covers all controls and the effectiveness of such intemal
controls.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the statement of
compliance does not appropriately reflect the company's compliance, in all material respect, with the best
practices contained in the Code of Corporate Governance as applicable to the company for the year ended
June 30, 2008.

K.arachi: MUSHTAQ & COMPANY
Lated: Chartered Accountants
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Olympia Spinning & Weaving Mills Limited

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 48" Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of OLYMPIA
SPINNING & WEAVING MILLS LIMITED, will be held at the Registered office of the company at
E-3, Farzana Building, 1* Floor, Block - 7 & 8, Shaheed-e-Millat Road, Karachi on Monday, October
20" 2008 at 10:00 a.m. to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business

1. To confirm the minutes of Extra ordinary General Meeting of the Company held'on February
12" 2008.

2. To receive, consider and adopt Audited Accounts for the year ended 30" June, 2008 together
with Auditor's and Director’'s Report thereon.

3. To appoint Auditors for the year ending 30" June, 2009 and to fix their remuneration.
4. To transact any other business with the permission of chairman.

Special Business
1. To seek the consent of the members for placing of quarterly accounts on the Company's
website, instead of sending the same by post to the members in compliance with the
Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan's circular No. 19 dated 14 April, 2004. In
this connection to consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following Special Resolution with
or without amendment(s).

"RESOLVED THAT the Company is hereby authorized to place its quarterly accounts on its
website instead of sending these to shareholders by mail.”

A statement under section 160 (1) (b) of the Ordinance pertaining to the Special Business referred
to above is annexed to this Notice of Meeting.

By order of the board

Muhammad Anwar Saigal
Company Secretary

Note

a. The Register of Members of the Company will remain closed from 14" October 2008 to
20" October 2008 (both days inclusive) , members are requested to notify change of
addresses (if any)

b. A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as
his/her proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf. The instrument appointing a Proxy and
the power of attorney or other authority under which it is signed or a notarially certified
copy of the power of attorney must be received at the Registered Office of the Company
duly stamped, signed and witnessed not later than 48 hours before the meeting.

c. Central Depository Company account holders will further have to follow the under mentioned
guidelines as laid down by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.
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Olympia Spinning & Weaving Mills Limited

A, For Attending the Meeting

1. Incase of individual, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the
Regulations, shall, authenticate his identity by showing his original National Identity Card
(NIC) or original Passport at the time of attending the Meeting.

2. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of attorney with specimen
signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the
time of the Meeting.

B. For Appointing Proxies

1. In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the
Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirements.

2. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose name, addresses and NIC
numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

3. Aftested copies of NIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be
furnished with the proxy form.

4. The proxy shall produce his original NIC or original passport at the time of the Meeting.
5. Members are requested to notify immediately changes, if any, in their registered addresses.
STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 160(1)(b) OF THE ORDINANCE.

Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide their circular No. 19 dated 14 April,
2004 has allowed listed companies to place their quarterly accounts on their websites instead of
sending them to shareholders by mail, subject to fulfillment of certain conditions including seeking
of the consent of its shareholders in a General Meeting.

This initiative has been taken by SECP to ensure timely and confirmed availability of the information
to the shareholders and investors. Further, costs involved in cumbersome exercise of sending
periodical accounts to all shareholders by mail, would also be saved while meeting the objectives
of the statutory provision in section 245 of the Company Ordinance, 1984.

Your Company wishes to place its quarterly accounts on its website: www.olympiaspinning.com,
so that advantage of the facility allowed by SECP can be availed for the benefit of our shareholders.

The members are accordingly requested to pass with or without modification the following resolution
as an ordinary resolution:

"RESOLVED 'I:I-]AT the Company is hereby authorized to place its quarterly accounts on its website
instead of sending these to shareholders by mail.

Karachi: September 27", 2008.
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Olympia Spinning & Weaving Mills Limited

AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of Olympia Spinning & Weaving Mills Limited as at June
30, 2008

and the related profit and loss account, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together
with the notes forming part thereof, for the year ended June 30, 2008 and we state that we have obtained
all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knnwledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the company’s management to establish and maintain a system of intemal contral,
and prepare and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards
and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to express an DplﬂiDﬂ on
these statements based on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said
statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above said statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting policies and significant estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall
presentation of the above said staterments. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion and, after due verification, we report that:

(a) As mentioned in note 141, the company has not provided liability under cross currency swap contracts
loss of Rs. 61.46 (M). The amount has been declared as Contingent Liability in Note No. 14.1, The
company has filed a suit in High Court of sindh and obtained stay order against the settlement of
cross currency swap contracts on the vague provision of the contracts. Had the provision been accounted
for, the loss would increase to Rs, 76.48 (M).

(b) in our opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by the company as required by the
Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of account and are further in

accordance with accounting policies consistently applied, except for the changes as stated in note 5.1
with which we concur;

{c) in our opinion:

(i) the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been
drawn up in conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with
the books of account and are further in accordance with accounting policies consistently
applied,

{ii) the expenditure incurred during the period was for the purpose of the company's business;
and

(i) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year
were in accordance with the objects of the company:;

(d) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given fo us,
except as mentioned in note (a) above and its effecis on the financial statements, the balance sheet,
profit and loss account, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes
forming part thereof conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give
the information required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and respectively
give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at June 30, 2008 and of the loss, its
cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended June 30, 2008; and

() in our opinion no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980.

MUSHTAQ & COMPANY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
KARACHI:
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Olympia Spinning & Weaving Mills L'
BALANCE SHEET AS AT JUNE 30, 2008

5 e JUNE 30, 2008 JUNE 30, 2007 TE JUME 30, 2008 JUN
EQUITY AND LIABILITIE ND ASSETS NOTE
RUPEES RUPEES PEREEREES RUPEES i
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 4 NON CURRENT ASSETS
Authorized capital : : et 15 1,674,353,591
13000,000 Crdinary shares of Rs.10 each. 130,000.000 130,000,000 Efpﬁ’ﬁ.ﬁg.-'ﬁ in pmgregﬂp ;l_i; 2?'33;';'}3
2 ; d it 495,
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 6 120,000,000 120,000,000 ik Lo lom inuactment in subsidiary 18 44.665.822
Revenue reserve 3,580,053 3,580,053
Capital Reserve 44,665,822 -
Unappropriated loss ]34,39?.!]21% (23 950.3?5! CURRENT ASSETS :
(A4, b, Stores and spare parts and loose tools 19 17,010,837
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assels 7 798,934,764 553,782 970 Stock in Lrade 20 408,812,676 4
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 21 133,372,571
- considered good W2
Long term financing 8 306,416,046 370,084,011 el g
Liability against assels subject 1o finance lease qQ 128,945,783 153,295,957 Loans and advances 22 129,239.410 1
Defarrad liabilities 10 4,216,949 3,523,054
CURRENT LIABILITIES CHher recaivables 23 14,615,793
~ Trade and other payables 11 409,305,789 302 869,208
Interast /| mark-up accrued on laans 12 27,849,098 22 047 177 Cash and bank balances 24 TD% ;ﬁ? g{fg .
Short-lerm borrowings 13 526,862,346 592,569,977
Current portion of
- long term financing 58,333,336 90,833,336
- liabilities agains assel subject
to finance lease 22,003,844 22951211
Provision for taxation 34,972 601 44 694 958
1,079, 327073 1.075,995,887
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 14 - -
ZASTRO0AT0 2256 311 667 # _2451Fm0410 _Z
i
The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial stalements
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIR
Karachi: 27th SEPTEMBER, 2008
47th ANNUAL REPORT. 2008 16 47th ANNUAL REPORT. 2008
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Olympia Spinning & Weaving Mills Limited

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

For the year For the year
ended ended
June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007
NOTE RUPEES RUPEES
Sales (net) 25 2,742 477,972 2,231,539,290
Cost of goods sold 26 (2,522,135,506) (2,016,704,534)
Gross profit 220,342 467 214,834,757
Distribution cost 27 (46,148,562) (48,193,5086)
Administrative expenses 28 (36,442,725) (31,718,397)
Other operating income 29 3,595,162 4,408,984
(78,996,124) (75,502,919)
Operating profit 141,346,343 139,331,837
Finance cost 30 (141,572, 407) (159,040,351)
Net loss before taxation (226,064) (19,708,514)
Taxation: 31 (14,802,586) (14,301,725)
Net loss for the year after taxation (15,028,650) (34,010,239)
Eaming per share - Basic and diluted 32 (1.25) (2.83)
The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Karachi: 27th SEPTEMBER,2008
47th ANNUAL REPORT. 2008 18




Olympia Spinning & Weaving Mills Limited

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

For year ended . For year ended
June3o, June30,
2008 2007

RUPEES RUPEES
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations (MNote: 33) 351,024,878 340,928,789
Taxes paid (19,396,934} (17,068,669)
Finance cost paid {135,770,488) {155,998,821)
Workers' profit participation fund paid - (2,458,858)
Gratuity paid (3,728,108) (3,355,267}
Long term deposits 1,242 468 (1,459,702)
Met cash from operating activities 193,371,816 160,588,472
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 940,000 4,200,000
Fixed capital expenditure (9,208,721} (56,601,436)
Capital work in progress. (2,661,885} 8,900,000
Met cash (used in)ffrom investing activities (10,930,606) (43,501,436)

CASH FLOW FORM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long term finance

Long term loans from Trade Creditors

Right shares subscription received

Short term finances

Repayment of lease liabilities

Advance against sale and lease back

Met cash used in financing aclivities

Met increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year,

(96,167 ,965)

(108,970,568)

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements

-

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Karachi: 27TH SEPTEMBER, 2008

(32,552,457)
- 96,000,000
(65,707,631) 19,757,136
(25,326,571) (64,842,919)
- (25,611,222)
(187,202,167) (116,220,030)
(4,760,957) 867,006
6,921,482 6,054,476
2,160,525 6,921,482
DIRECTOR

47th ANNUAL REPORT. 2008
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Olympia Spinning & Weaving Mills Limited

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

PAID UP |REVENUE| CAPITAL UN-

CAPITAL |RESERVE|RESERVE |[APPROPRIATED| TOTAL
. LOSS

. E— RUPEES -
Balance as at June 30, 2006 24,000,000 3,580,053 - 4,809,506 32,389,559
Issue of Right Shares 96,000,000 - - - 96,000,000
Loss for the year 2007 - - - (36,096,939) (36,096,939)
Tranzferred from surplus on revaluation of fixed assets
on account of incremental depreciation charged in the
current year-net of deferred taxation - - - 7,337,059 7,337,099
Balance as at June 30, 2007 120,000,000 3,580,053 - (23,950,375) 99,629,678
Loss for the year 2008 - - - (17.416,853) (17,416,853)
Gift of Shares by shareholders of Olympia Power
Generation (Pvt) Limited. . - - 44 665 822 - 44 665822
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of fixed assets
on account of incremental depreciation charged in the
current year 2008 - - - 6,970,206 6,970,206
Balance as at June 30, 2008 120,000,000 3,580,053 44,665,822 34,397,021) 133,848,854

June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007

RUPEES RUPEES
STATEMENT OF RECOGHNISED INCOME AND EXPENSES
Loss for the year (15,028,650) (34,010,239)
Acturial (Loss) recognised (2,388,203) (2,086,700)

(17.416,853) (36,096,939)

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements

DIRECTOR

CHIEF EXECUTIVE ™

Karachi: 27th SEPTEMBER, 2008
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Olympia Spinning & Weaving Mills Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2008

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS:

The company was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited company on October 28,
1960, and its shares are quoted on the Karachi Stock Exchange. The main business of
the company is manufacturing and sale of yarn. The registered office of the company is
situated at E-3 Farzana Building, 1* floor, Block 7 & 8, Shaheed-e-Millat Road Karachi.

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY-UNLISTED

During the year on February 09, 2008 the directors of Olympia Power Generation (Pvt)
Limited have gifted 9,000 shares representing 60% of their shareholding to the company
at free of cost.The investment value has been recorded at fair value by taking break-up
value of Olympia Power Generation (Pvt) Limited accounts as at February 09, 2008 &
crediting capital reserve with Rs. 44, 665,822. .

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the
provisions of, or directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall prevail.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards,
as applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in
the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods. The areas involving higher degree of judgments or complexity or areas where
assumption and estimates are significant to the financial statements are as follows:

a) Employee retirements benefits- Note-10
b) Useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipment- Note-5.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Change in accounting policy & method:

Change in cost formula for raw-material from annual weighted average to monthly
average:

Based on new circumstances and huge variation in raw cotton prices, the company has
changed its cost formula for calculation of inventories from annual weighted average to
monthly weighted average. This change in accounting estimate is dealt under International
Accounting Standard (IAS 8) “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
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b)

5.2

3.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

Errors”. Had the previous policy of calculation of cost applied, the loss would have increased
by Rs.34.473 (M) and carrying value of inventory would be reduced by the same amount.
The impact of changes of this estimate in future periods is not disclosed because estimating
the effect in future periods is impracticable.

Staff retirement benefit:
During the year the company has adopted the alternative approach of recognizing actuarial
gain and losses outside the profit & loss account through “Statement of recognized income
& expenses” in accordance with para 93A of IAS-19 The prior year figure in balance sheet
and profit & loss account have been restated to account for the change in accounting policy
in compliance with the requirements of International Accounting Standard (IAS 8) “Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”™. The change have no effect on the
net profit/ (loss) of prior years.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company's
functional currency. All financial information presented in Pakistan Rupees has been
rounded to the nearest rupess.

Defined benefit plan

The company operates an unfunded gratuity plan for all of its permanent employees, who
attain the minimum qualification period for entitlement to gratuity. Provision is made on the
basis of actuarial valuation. The most recent actuarial valuation was carried out effective
from June 30, 2008 using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Any actuarial gain or loss recognized during the year is accounted for under para 93A of
IAS-19 by recognizing whole amount of actuarial gain or loss in “Statement of recognized
income and expense “in statement of changes in equity.

Taxation

Current

Provision for current taxation is made on the taxable income, if any, after taking into
account tax credit and tax rebate available.

Deferred

Deferred tax is provided in full using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the financial statements. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected
manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date.

The carrying amount of all deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date
and reduced to the extent, if it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value
of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or
not billed to the Company.

Provisions

A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resource embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of obligation.
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55  Property, plant and equipment

a) Owned

Property plant and equipment except land are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment loss, if any. !

Depreciation on additions during year is charged on pro-rata basis when the assets are
available for use. Similarly the depreciation on deletion is charged on pro-rata basis up
to the period when the assets is derecognized. The company reviews the rate of depreciation,
useful life, residual value of assets for possible impairment on annual basis. Useful lives
are determined by the management based on expected usage of assets, expected physical
wear and tear, technical and commercial obsolescence, legal and sirmilar limits on the use
of the assets and other similar factors. Any change in the estimates in future years might
affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant and equipment with
a corresponding affect on the depreciation charges and impairment.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to income as and when incurred. Major
renewals and improvements are capitalized.
b) Leased Assets subject to finance lease

Assets subject to finance lease are initially recorded at the lower of present value of
minimum lease payment under the lease agreement and the fair value of the leased asset.
The related obligations under the lease less financial charges allocated to future period
are shown as a liability. Financial charges are allocated to accounting period in a manner
to provide constant periodic rate of charge on the outstanding liability. Capitalized or leased
assets are depreciated on the same basis and on the same rate as owned assets. Income

arising from sales and lease back transaction, if any, is deferred and is amortized equally
over the lease period.

c) Capital work in progress
Capital work in progress is stated at cost and represents expenditure on fixed assets in
the course of construction and installation. Transfers are made to relevant fixed assets
category as and when assets are available for use.

d) Impairment of fixed assets
In accordance with |IAS 36, assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of these assets may be
recoverable. Whenever the carrying amount of these assets exceeds their recoverable
amount, an impairment loss is recognized in the profit and loss account.

58 Stores, spares and loose tools
These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined by moving
average method. Items considered obsolete are carried at nil value. Items in transit are
valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.

5.9  Stock in trade .
These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV) except waste
** Raw material Monthly average except those in transit

which are stated at cost comprising invoice
value plus other charge incurred thereon

Finished goods and Faw material cost plus appropriate
work  in process manufacturing overheads
Waste At net realizable value
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Net realizable value signifies the selling price prevailing in the market less selling expenses
incidental to sales :

510 Trade debts .
Trade debts originated by the Company are recognized and carried-at original invoice
amount less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts. An estimated provision for
doubtful debt is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable. Bad debts
are written off as incurred.

511 Cash and cash equivalent
Cash in hand, cash at bank and short-term deposits, which are held to maturity, are
carried at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statements, cash equivalent are short-term
highly liquid instrument that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to insignificant risk of changes in values.

512 Financial instruments

All the financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Any gain or
losses on derecognition of the financial assets and financial liabilities are taken to profit
and loss account currently. Financial assets are stated at their nominal value as reduced
by the appropriate allowances for estimating irrecoverable amount. Mark up bearing
financial liabilities are recorded at the gross proceeds received. Other financial liabilities
are stated at their nominal value.

5.13 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities
A financial asset and financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if the company has a legal enforceable right to set off the recognized
amounts and intends either to settle on net basis or to realize the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

5.14 Revenue recognition
Sales are recognized on dispatch of goods to the customers. Dividend income is
recognized when right to receive dividend is established. Interest income is recognized
on accrual basis.

5.15 Derivative Financial Instruments

These are initially recognised at cost and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value.
The method of recognising gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated
as a hedging instrument and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. Derivatives (Other
than designated as hedging instrument) with positive market values (unrealised gains)
are included in other assets and derivates with neﬁativa market values (unrealised
Losses) are included in other liabilities in the balance sheet. The resultant gain and losses
are included in the income currently.

5.16 Borrowing cost
All mark up, interest and other charges are charged to current income on an accrual
basis. _.

5.17 Dividend and appropriation to reserves o
The dividend distribution and appropriation to reserves is recognised in the period in
which, these are approved.

518 Related party transactions
The Company at arms’ length price using the method prescribed under the Companies
Ordinance, 1984, carries out all transactions with related parties.
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8.1

8.2

8.2(a)

8.3

June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007
RUPEES RUPEES
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL
2,200,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each ;
fully paid in cash 22,000,000 22,000,000
200,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
fully paid as bonus shares 2,000,000 2,000,000
9,600,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 96,000,000 96,000,000
issued as right shares
155@55 000 120,000,000
SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF FIXED ASSETS
Balance as at July 01, 2007 553,782,970 561,120,029
Add: surplus on revaluation of land during the year 252,122,000 .
795,904,970 561,120,029
Less:
transfer to unappropriated profit on account of incremental
depreciation for the year. 6,970,206 7,337,059
__ 6,970,206 7,337,059
Balance as at June 30, 2008 788,934, 764 553,782 970
LONG TERM FINANCING
From banking companies - secured
Loan 1 (Note:8.1) 63,000,000 63,000,000
Loan 2 (Note:8.2) 137,499,999 167,583,333
Loan 3 (Note:8.2(a)) 5,833,333 7,500,001
Loan 4 (Note:8.3) - 2,500,000
Loan 5 (Mote: 8.4) 60,000,000 60,000,000
Loan 6 (Mote: 8.5) 45,000,000 50,000,000
311,333,332 350,583,334
From related party - unsecured
Directors loan- Sub-ordinated (Note: 8.6) 53,416,050 95,334,013
Associated company (Note: 8.7) - 15,000,000
53,416,050 110,334,013
Current maturity of long term financing (MNote: 8.9) (58,333,336) (90,833,336)
306,416,046 370,084,011

This term loan with UBL is for Rs.63.00 (M) for 5 years with a grace period of two years starting from August
31,2009 and repayable in quarterly installments of Rs.5.25 (M) each. This is secured by equitable mortgage
of Rs.575.396 (M) on fixed assts, and floating charge on current assts and personal guarantee of Directors.
Mark-up is @ 3 months Kibor + 2.5 % per annum, payable quarterly.

This revised Term financing with Askari Bank Lid. for Rs. 137.5 (M) is for four years with a grace period of 21
months. Repayment is in 24 equal quarterly installments starting from 1st September 2008 and ending in
December 2011. This is secured by specific charge of Rs. 200 (M) over the machinery imported and purchased
locally and first pari passu charge of Rs. 310 (M) over plant and machinery and personal guarantee of directors.
Mark-up is @ 6 months Kibor + 2.00% bps payable quarterly.

This revised long Term financing with Askari Bank Ltd. for Rs. 6.25 (M) is for four years and secured by specific
charge of Rs. 200(M) on imported machinery and Rs.310 (M) on plant and machinery along with other facilities.
Repayments is in 20 equal quarterly installments of Rs. 0.416 (M) ending in December 2011. Mark up is SBP
refinance rate plus 2% payable quarterly.

This demand finance loan from Allied Bank Ltd. is repayable in monthly installments commencing from May-
2005 and carries mark-up (@ 6 months kibor average ask side + 2% per annum, payable quarterly. This loan
is secured by ranking charge over fixed assets of the company to the extent of Rs.33.00 (M) in addition to
persons! quarantee of sponsor Directors. Total facility amount is Rs. 24.5 (M).
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8.4 This term finance from Soneri Bank Ltd has 12 months grace period and repayable in four half yearly installments
commencing from 1st July 2008 and endin? on 1st January 2010 and carries mark up @ 6 months kibor +
2.65 % per annum, payable quarterly. Total facility amount is Rs. 60.00 (M).Charge on fixed assets of the
company is to the extent of Rs.80 (M).

8.5 This demand finance has been rescheduled with My Bank Ltd. having 6 months grace period and repayable
in 10 quarerly installments commencing from August 23, 2007 and ending on November 23, 2009 and carries
mark-up @ & months kibor + 4% with a floor of 15% with mark-up payable quarterly. Total facility amount is
Rs.50.00(M).Charge over fixed assets of the company Rs. 6T(M).

8.6 The Directors loan is unsecured and interest free and is not repayable in the next twelve months. This loan
has been Sub- ordinated to bank loans.

8.7 These represent unsecured finance obtained from an associated company carrying no markup and is not
repayable in the next twelve months

8.8 During the year the company has entered into cross cumrency swap arrangements at different dates to hedge
the probable adverse movement in interest rates.Under the terms of these contracts at each swap date , the
company will receive KIBOR from the arranging bank in local currency & pays LIBOR plus Bank spread in
USD and settling the transaction on net cash basis. There has been no transfer of liability , only the nature of
the interest payments has been changed. As this hedging relationship is ineffective and does not meet the
criteria of hedge, this arrangement does not qualify for special hedge accounting specified in I1AS 39 "Financial
Instruments:Recongnition and Measurement". The derivative cross currency swap payable as at June 30, 2008
has been marked to market and the resulting liability of Rs.61.46 (M) has not been recognised in profit & loss
account due to the reasons disclosed in Nole 14.1.

8.9 Includes overdue installment of Rs. 9.16 (M).

9 LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE
June 30, 2008  June 30, 2007

RUPEES RUPEES
Minimum lease payments
Up to one year 38,806,696 41,028,685
More than one year but less than five years 149,185,386 179 476,230
187,982,082 220,504,915
Less: Financial charges
Up to one year 16,802,852 18,886,239
More than one year but less than five years 20,238,603 25341478
37.041,455 44,227,717
Present value of minimum lease payments
Up to one year 22,003,844 22 981,231
More than one year but less than five years 128,946,783 153,295,967
50,950, 176,277,198

9.1 The company has entered into lease agreements with various leasing companies. The lease agreement
contains bargain purchase option. Taxes, repairs and maintenance, insurance and other costs relating to the
leased assets are to be borne by the company. The rate of finance charges applied vary from 11.71 % to 18.38
% (June 2007 11.35% to 14.09“;{} per annum. The above liabilities are additionally secured by security deposits
and personal guarantee of Directors.

10 DEFERRED LIABILITIES
Staff retirement benefit-gratuity(Note:10.1 to 10.5) 4,216,949 3,523,054
Deferred tax (MNote:10.6 - -
—4216949 ___3523.004
10.1 Movement in the net liability recognized in the balance sheet
Opening netdmbility 3,523,054 3,258,442
Expense for the year 4422 003 3,619,879
7,945,057 6,878,321
Contribution paid ;?-I?EB 1DB! 3,355,267
Closing net liability £ 10,
10.2 Expense recognized in the profit and loss account excluding actuarial loss
Current service cost 1,793,654 1,334,181
Interest cost 240,146 198,988
2,033,800 1,533,178
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10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

11

11.1

12

13

131

14
14.1

14.2

General description
The scheme provides for terminal benefits for all of its permanent employees who attain the minimum qualifying
period. Annual charge is made using the actuarial technique of Projected Unit Credit Method..

June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007
Principal actuarial assumption RUPEES RUPEES
Following are a few important actuaral assumptions used in the valuation,

% %
Discount rate 12 10
Expected rate of increase in salary 5 5
Historical information 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

RUPEES RUPEES RUPEES RUPEES RUPEES
Present value of the defined obligation 4,216,919 3,623 0564 3258442 2893776 4865582
The company has provided for the current tax based on normal provisions of the income tax ordinance
2001.However the Company has not provided for deferred tax since the Company's management expects that
in consonance with the past trends, future tax liabilities would continue to be finalised under the final tax
Regime. Therefore, any timing differences arising during the year are not expected to reverse in future periods.

June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007

RUPEES RUPEES
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade creditors (Mote 11.1) 101,757 479 78,775,937
Bills payable 282,168,084 214,339,022
Accrued expenses 15,380,226 9.754 248

408,305,789 _ 302,869,208

This includes Rs. 18.88 (M) payable to Olympia Power Generation (Pvt) Ltd on account of purchase of electricity

INTEREST / MARK-UP ACCRUED ON LOANS

Long term financing 6,241,503 2,588,639

Short term running finance 21,607,595 19,458,538
27,849,098 22047 177

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Secured-banking companies (Mote: 13.1) 526862346 _ 5925690977

The facilities for running finance available from various banks amounted to Rs, 846.5 (M) (June 2007:Rs 796.5
(M) and carries mark-up ranging from 11.75% to 18.35% (June 2007:11.26% to 14.09%) per annum payable
quarterly. The above facilities are secured by pledge of raw cotton and hypothecation charge on stock and
book debts and personal guarantee of directors.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

The company has filed a suit in High Court of Sind and obtained Stay Order against setflement of cross currency
swap contracts of Rs. 830(M). entered into by the company during the year with a foreign bank. The company
mainly contest on vague provision of unwinding cost calculation , mismatched dates of settlement with it long
term loans repayments and other procedural non compliance of foreign bank. No provision of Rs 61.46 m has
been made in the financial statement as management strongly believes that the case would be decided in
company's favor.

-

June 30, 2008  June 30, 2007

RUPEES RUPEES
Commitments
Capital Commitments for civil works 6,203,000 4,300,000
Letter of credit - import of cotton 202 880,738 _ 179,598 347
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152

= COST { REVALUATION

f—————————— DEFRECIATION ———————¥|

W.ILY.
PARIEALARS AS AT ADDITION | oo oo | TRANSFER AS AT RATE % | Asar |rom THE Wy N*L*;u
01-07-2007 (MELETION) INNOUT) Mi-- HHIE 01-07-2007 YEAR 30-6-2008 .
OWNED i
Lease hold land 424,578,000 - 251,122,000 676,700,000 - - - 76,700,000
Factory building on lease hobd land 404,383,193 - - 404,383,193 4 74,145,654 13,209,342 B7,358,996 17,024,197
Plurt snd machinery :- B0, 703,554 5,320,909 BO.086, 500 ERG, 110,963 ] 325,055,530 32.075.234 24695453 381,826,217 504,204,746
Office equipment 6,545,939 1,230,028 - 779,964 10 2,830,144 466,817 3,308,961 4474005
Factory tools and equipment 1,654,947 13,500 E: 1668 447 1 778,103 E7,684 BG5S, 787 802, 560
Fumiture and fixture 5,769,528 130,720 - 5,900,257 10 1,882.714 397416 2,280,130 3,620,027
Mator vehicle 369,980 566,883 £,989.000 7.706,863 20 168,223 696,517 5462.126 4,826,472 2,880,291
(2,2 19,0000 (1.501.494)
Arnns and ammumition 36500 - 36,500 10 .75 T2 20,547 6953
Electric and pipe fitting 4,304,501 156,675 = 48341176 10 20,239.088 2,810,209 23040207 25201879
1,690,440, 142 0,208,721 252,122,000 B0,086.500 2.038,627.363 : 425,142.231 49,743,991 28,656,185 503542407  1.535,084.955
(2,219,000} 8,089,000
LEASED
Plamt and machinery 250,844,767 (50,086, 500) 170,758,267 i 513980580 8383340 (24.695453) 36,285,946 134,472,321
Motor vehicles 18,357,000 (B.589,000) 0,368,000 0 B.2B1,715 1,752,197 (5.462,226) 4,571,686 4,706,314
268,200,767 (BSOS, S00) 180,126,267 60,679,774 10,335,537 (30.I57.679) 40,857,632 139,268,635
TOTAL RUPEES - 2008 1,920,641,900 9,208,721 152,122,000 1,118,753,630 485 822,005 60,079,528 (1,501,4%4) 544,400,039  1,674,353,59]
A2,219,000) . :
TOTAL RUPEES - 2007 1,869,251,279 B6, 513,070 1,959,641,5909 417,986,069 61,211,207 (3376,271) 485812005 1473819904
16,122,440 E
Adjustment of lexsed machinery represents transfer to cwied assets on completion of term of lease.
30-Jun-14 30-Jun-07
Depreciation has been allocated as under: RUPEES RUPEES
Cost of sales (Nose:26) 56,765.809 57,984,986
Adminisirative expenses{Nate: 28) 3313,719 3,227,221
60,070,528 61,212,308

Had there been no revaluation the related figures of lund and factory bullding st June 30, 2008 would have been as follows.

Cost Book Value
Leuse hobd land 383000 383,000
Factory bullding on lease hald land J04, 5. 496 150.625,859
As ut I0eh June 2008 205,208,496 151,002,859
As ut Jth June 2007 05, 208 490 157,280,103

During the year the company revalued its land which resulted in surplus of 252.122(M). The revaluation was carried out under market value basis by an independent valuer Messers lmran Associate. The company revalued its
leasehold land in 2005 by Consultancy Support & Services Management Consultants, which resulted increase in net surplus of Bs. 151,633 (M) . The company had further revalued its faciory building in the year 2006 by
Consultancy Support & Services, Management Consultants, which resulted increase in net surplus of Rs. 122,681 (M),




Olympia Spinning & Weaving Mills Limited

15.3 DISPOSAL OF FIXED ASSETS BY NEGOTIATIONS
Particulars Dm:l .ﬁocuml:llatarc"l Book Value | SalesProceed Hnsn:énl FPurchaser
VEHICLES ’
SUZUKI CULTUS AEX-563 550,000 405206 184,704 350,000] By Megotiation | MR, SYED INAMUDDN
D-35 ANARKALI FLAZA SECTOR 5-K NORTH KARACHI,
KARACHI
SUZUK] CULTLIS AFB-780 590,000 410248 179,752 200,000] By Negotistion | MR, IRSHAD AHMED
HOUSE # 4/235 SHAH FAISAL COLONY, KARACH]
BUZUKI CULTUS AHN-ETD 580,000 309,138 280 86E 00,0001 By Megetiation | MR, KASHIF AMIAD
HOAISE # $-2201,6TH STREET PHASE 1 D.H.A KARACHI,
HYNDAE SANTRO ACY-327 440,000 76812 72,136 80,000{ By Megofialicn | MR, SYED FARHAN AYAZ
HOUSE # A-255 BLOCK # 1, GULSHAN-E-IOBAL KARACHI
Total Rupees 2,218,000 1501404 | - 717,508 240,000
June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007
RUPEES RUPEES
16 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
Civil Works .
Opening Balance 3,301,528 12201528
Addition ' 2,661,885 -
Transfer - (8,900,000}
Closing Balance 5,963 413 3,301,528
17 LONG TERM DEPOSITS
Lease security deposits 19,130,100 20,370,538
KESC 1,829,694 1,820,604
Other deposils 535,978 538,008
21495772 2,738,240
18 LONG TERM INVESTMENT
Long term Investment in subsidiary - unguoted
Olympia Power Generation{Pvt) Ltd
9000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each.
Break- up value Rs. 4,926 869 per share Total Rs.44,665,822. 44 BES 822
44 665 B22 -
On February 09, 2008 the Directors of Olympia Power Generation (put) Ltd gifted 9000 ordinary shares of Rs.10
each which were recorded in the books of the company at a break- up value of Rs. 4,962,869 per shares and
credited to capital reserves.
19 STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS
Stores 12,657,744 5,526,845
Packing material 4,353,093 3,070,176
17,010 837 8,597 021
20 STOCK IN TRADE
Raw material 336,839,091 323,856,078
Raw material in transit - 84,164 452
Waork in process 18,395,164 17.014 163
Finished goods 53,413 291 58,203,912
Waste L 165,130 1,493 650
—408.812. 676 _AB4.732.205
21 TRADE DEEBTS
considered good
Export - secured 24 044 911 44 629,768
Local - unsecurad 109,327 660 34,865,133
133,372,571 — 19404001
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22 LOANS AND ADVANCES
Unsecured-considered good
Advances

To employees
Staff
Workers

To suppliers(Note:22.1)
To contractors
Short term deposits
L/C payments
Advance Income tax
Freight subsidy receivable

June 30, 2008  June 30, 2007
RUPEES RUPEES
641,477 892,243
3,347,790 4,031,953
3,989 267 4,924,196
41,942 880 77,644 328
7,065,639 7,096,770
33,762,438 10,600,052
1,094,760 566,397
35,727,768 49 520,004
5,656,659 11,491,912
129,239.410 161,843 658

221 Advance to supplier include Rs. Nil (2007:12.567M) from Olympia Power Generation (Private) Limited.

23 OTHER RECEIVABLES
Sales tax receivable
Central excise duty receivable from banks
Others
24 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand
Cash at bank in current accounts
25 SALES
Local
Yam

Raw cotton
Waste

Export
Yarn

Brokerage and commission

-

June 30, 2008  June 30, 2007
RUPEES RUPEES
11,162,228 11,928,473
261,487 261,487
3,192,078 2,672,619
14,615,793 14 862 579
1,707,449 1,670,881
453,077 5,250,601
2,160,525 6,021,482
1,035,943 34 406,485,515
215,151,2 144,800,092
114,083 ,61 87,268,042
1,365,178,169 638,553,649
1,407,838 568 1,620,309,654
1,407,838,568  1,620,309,654
2,773.016,737  2.258,863,303
(30,538,765) (27,324,013)
2742477972 2,231,539,290
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June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007
RUPEES RUPEES
26 COST OF SALES :
Raw material consumed (Note:26.1) 2,046,480,275 1,573,263, 119
Packing material consumed (Mote:26.2) 47,306,935 46,624,388
Stores and spare parts consumed (Note:26.3) 25,750,511 24,749 889
Salaries, wages and benefils (Note: 26.4) 112,079,589 a5 806,799
Power and fuel < 210,803,319 172,299 749
Doubling Charges - 315,124
Vehicle running and maintenance 693,192 725,841
Traveling and conveyance 73,186 26,554
Repairs and maintenance 4,022 437 3.551,192
Insurance 8,188,011 5,457,250
Miscellaneous overheads 587,513 355,987
Depreciation (Mote:15.1) 56,765,809 57,984 986
2,512,750, 777  1,981,160,878
Work in process
Opening 17.014,163 13,600,733
Closing (18,395,164) (17,014,163)
(1,381,000} (3,413,430)
Cost of goods manufactured 2.511,369,776 1,977,747,448
Cotton Yarn purchase 4 646 588 59,610,420
Finished goods and waste
Opening 59,697,562 39,044,228
Closing (53,578,421 (59,697 562)
6,119,141 (20,653 334)
Cost of sales 2522135506 2.016.704.534
26.1 RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED
Opening stock 408,020,530 404,717,209
Purchases 7 1.576,566.440
2,383,319,366  1,981,283,649
Closing stock (336,830,091) (408,020,530)
2046480275 _1,573,263,119_
26.2 PACKING MATERIAL CONSUMED
Opening stock 3,070,176 1.431,302
Purchases 45,589 852 48 263,262
51,660,028 49 694 564
Closing stock (4,353,093) (3.070,176)
47,306,935 4 4 388
26.3 STORES AND SPARES CONSUMED
Opening stock 5,526,845 7.515,173
Purchases 32,881,409 22 761,561
38,408,254 30,276,734
Closing stock (12,657,744) (5,526,845)
25750511 _24,749,889_
26.4 Itincludes Rs. 2,033,800/- (June 2007: Rs. 1,533,179/-) in respect of staff retirement benefits.
27 DISTRIBUTION COST
Freight and cartage 42 656,963 44 277 915
Export Development Surcharge 3,491,599 3,915,591
46,148,562 _48,193,506_
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28 ADMINISTRATIVE AND SELLING EXPENSES

28.1

28.2

29

30

Salaries and other benefits (Note:28.1)
Rent, rales and taxes

Electric gas and water

Postage, telephone and telex
Printing and stationery

Traveling and conveyance

Legal and professional
Newspapers and periodicals
Repairs and maintenance
Charity and donation (Note:28.2)
Advertisernent and publicity
Motor vehicle expenses
Entertainment

Packing Charges

Auditor's remuneration:

Audit fee

Half yearly review fee

Miscellaneous
Insurance Expense
Depreciation (Note:15)

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF
EXECUTIVE AND EXECUTIVES

June 30,2008  June 30, 2007
RUPEES RUPEES
16,918,223 14,019,411
4,729,157 5,578,525
951,252 973,838
1,437,601 1,333,908
551,496 778,400
1,010,887 326,246
3,258,577 1,727,384
9,479 10,000
771,835 712,895
5,000 -
167,918 114,344
837,426 1,091,912
863,848 792,984
20,827
192,500 175,000
75,000 75,000
267,500 250,000
678,499 185,962
570,309 574,539
3,313,719 3,227 221
36,442 725 31,718,396

The Chief Executive and Directors of the company have waived their remuneration and meeting fee.

The Chief Executive and two directors of the company are provided with free use of company maintained car

and telephone at their residences.

Directars and their spouse have no interest in the donees.

OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Gain on disposal of fixed assets
Scrap sales

Purchase discount

Other receipts

FINANCE COST
Interest/mark-up on

Long term loans

Interest expense on W.P.P.F
Bank running finance
Finance charges on lease

Markup Others

Markup recovered from Subsidiary Company
Gain or loss on cross currency swap

LC discounting and Bank charges

June 30,2008  June 30, 2007
RUPEES RUPEES
222,494 1,453,831
3,372 668 2,779,332
- 69,635
- 106,186
3,595,162 4,408,984
39,603,924 35,680,826
- 37,840
75,451,106 84,434 463
17,668,263 24,452 831
132,613,293 144 605,950
- 367,500
(2,619,050) -
(B65,928) -
12,444 092 14,066,892
141,572 407 158,040,351
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k|

34

32

33

34

341
34.2

June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007

RUPEES RUPEES
TAXATION
Current (Note 31.1) 14,284,234 24,006,591
Prior 518,352 -
Deferred - {9,704 ,866)
14,802,586 14,301,725
Current
The provision for taxation has been made in these financial statement on the basis of section 169 of the income
tax ordinance, 2001
EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC & DILUTED June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007
RUPEES RUPEES
There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the company
Profit for the year in rupees (15,028,650) (34,010,233)
Total number of ordinary shares 12,000,000 12,000,000
Earnings per share in rupees- Basic and diluted (1.25) (2.83)
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profit f{Loss) before taxation (226,064) (19,708,514)
Adjustment for non cash charges and other items
Depreciation 60,079,528 61,212,208
Financial charges 141,572 407 159,040,351
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of fixed assels (222,494) (1,453,831)
Provision for gratuity 4. 422 003 3,619,879
205,851,444 222 418,607
Operating profit/ (loss) before working capital changes 205,625,380 202,710,093
{Increase)/decrease in current asseis
Stock, Store & spare parts 67,505,763 | (27.020,631)
Trade debts (53.877.671) 11,324,355
Loans and advances 27,476,241 22,839,931
Other receivables 246 786 1,711 827
41,351,120 8,855 282
Increase/{decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables 106,436,581 131,451,113
' 353,413,080 343016489

TRANSACTION WITH SUBSIDIARY/ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKING
The related parties and associated undertakings comprise, local associated companies, directors and key
management personnel. Transaction with related parties and associated undertakings other than remuneration
and benefits to key management personnel under the term of their employment are as follows

June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007

" RUPEES RUPEES
Purchase of electricity (Mote:33.1) 198,392,080 155,828,125
Discount availed on electric purchases - 19,478,516

This amount represents the purchase of electric power from Olympia Power Generation Private) Limited.

Transactions with associated undertakings/subsidiary are carried out by the company at arms length price using
the method prescribed under the Companies Ordinance, 1984,
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3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RELATED INSCLOSURE

351 YIELD/MARK UP BATE RISK
Vield J park up rate risk  the 1k that the vahss of the lmsneial imtnamen will Micniste dug o changes in the market yield/ mark up rates. Sensitivity w yield ! mark ap rate risk arises from
mismatches. of financial assets and lisbilities thal mature or reprice ina gven period. The Company manages these mivmatches throagh nsk mamagement stralegies where signifcsnt changes in

gap position can be adjussed. The Company i

d to yield! mark up rae rsk m respect of the following:

Pl ] »
imerestimark up beari w bl wp bearing
el Wlare thal TIFTAL
Wikthin nae Tmi rlm'n n-rl Swb total mlrﬁ"m}ﬂflh‘ur‘ tham ane Sub tetal ]
+ RLPFEES
FENANCIAL ASSETS
Dieposics - - - 33,762,438 . 33,762,438 33,762 438
Trade debis - - . 133372571 - 13.3R.50 133372871
Onler recervables - 14,615,793 - 14,615,793 14,615,793
Cash and bank balances - - - 2,160,525 - 2,160,525 1,160,525
- 183,911 328 - 183911 338 183911 528
FINANCIAL LIABILTTIES
Laans FEEERERG 252999909 311333332 - 53416050 53,416,050 36, 749,362
Liabalities agaiss sszers subject o finsce lease ILO03E44  12B.946,783 150,950,627 - - 150,950,627
Shor temm fismee 516 BAT Se6 B 526 BGE 346 = - - i B4E B86
Trade and other payables = - - e L - A9, 3015, TRY 409 303 TED
BOT 19520 3R1.946,77% SE9, 146,305 &M,305,73% 53416050 461721839  1A51.B6E.143
O balamce: sheer ems:
Bk Gusranters isssed - - - - - -
Other commtmenis - - - - - = 201 BB, TR
Total i Xk BRO, 73R
Total ylekd { mark up rabe risk sensitivity gap (O07.199.526) (3R] 946,779 GRS | 4 ITRRIBSLL) (1367 956,816
MY balancr sheet pap (02 EE0.T3R)
TOFTAL
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Diegam s - - - 10,600,052 - 10,600,052 10,500,052
Trade debix - - - TR AT 00 - TR AD4,901 TRAN
Other recemvables - - 14,662,579 - 14,662,579 14,862,579
Cash and bank balances = G921.482 - 6.921,482 6,921 482
- - - 181. 1,355 - 20T 5R7.893 11LE79.004
FENANCIAL LIABILITIES
Larates SOEEERG 289,740,998 IH05E3, 334 - TII4003 10,534,003 460917 347
Lisbilities apuimt assers subject o finance lease I1.9E1.131 153205967 176277198 - - . 176,277,198
Short term fimance 591 549 977 . 591 569 977 - - . 392 560,977
Trade snd other payalilen . - = B2 B9 208 = 02,860,208 W2 K09, 208
TOoIEESE 413045965 1119430509 302 B69. 208 110334003 413.203.221  1.532.633,730
06 balamce sheet Rems:
Bk Gussumers inuped 5 - - - - - T 2L
Oeher commtmenis - - - - - - 174,721,995
Toptal 181991 995
Total yiekl  mark up rate risk sensitivity gap (06 3R {413,045 965 {121 556.85%) (1100334005 (2RA15328) (1LAML754.T16)
Ot Balanee sheet pap 1B 59 955

Effective yield ! mark up rate wis mestisned in the relevant notes.

321 Concentration of credit risk
Credit rek is the ruk thal one party 10 a financial imanement will fsl 10 discharpe an obligaion sl cases the other pany 1o iheur & Teaneml ke, Concemranen of credil ik arme when 2
mupidct of cosberparties are engaged in similar business setivities or have similar cconomic festures that weoald cause their ability to moet contractual ohligations s be similardy affected by
changrs in economics, politicel or other eonditiom:. The Company attempts 1o control coedit risk by monitoring credit exposune, Emiting iramsaction with specific coumerparties sod continually
assessing the credivwonkaness of counlespartics.

353 Fair valwe of financial indruments
The camying value of all she finaneisl strumcnts reporied in the fmncial stsement approximate their fair vabse.

M4 Foreign evchange risk mamgement
Forelgn currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist dus b tramsections with foreign usderakings, The mamipement mansges the risk through efficient use of forward
covery aned believes that i is not expesed 1 sigmifica exchanpe k. As al year end no Forwand contracts have been taken up by the msmpement due 1o strengthening of the local durmney
aganel foreign curmencies.

355 Capital sk management

The whjective of the company when mansging capilal s 1o safeguand ity ability 1o s @ going concern so that it can conlinue 1o provide refurme for sharcholders and benefit for ofher
stakeholders; mnd to maintain o sirang capital buse s suppart the sustained development of its business.
The: company massspe: i1y capital strucvare by monitorisg peparm on net assets and make adjusinsems o it i g lght of ehasges in
anacture, the Company may adjust the s of dividend paid 10 the sharcholders of saue mew shares:

L i

I ordes po maistain or adjusa the capital
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36 PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION:
Total number of spindles installed
Average Mo. of spindles worked
Mumber of shifts

Actual production of the period in kgs
after conversion into 20/1 count

Installed capacity of the period in kgs
after conversion into 20/1 count

44,484 44,484
44,004 44,004

3 3
14,253,918 14,144,356
15,104,644 15,104,644

It is difficult to describe precisely the production capacity in textile industry since it fluctuates widely depending
on various factors. Such as count of yarn spun, spindle speed, twist per inch and raw material used etc. It
would also vary according to the pattern of production adopted in a particular year.

37 General

Corresponding last year figures have been rearranged and reclassified, whenever necessary, for better

presentation and disclosure
Reclassification from

Trade Debts
Local Debts

Administrative & Selling Expense
Export Develop. Surcharge (Rent, rates and taxes)

38 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE -

Reclassification to Amount

Loan & Advances
Suppliers 55,300,129

Distribution Cost
Export Develop. Surcharge 3,915,519

The Board of directors of the company have authorized these financial statements for issue on September

27,2008,

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Karachi: 27th SEPTEMBER, 2008

DIRECTOR
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OLYMPIA GROUP

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

30 JUNE 2008
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DIRECTORS REPORT ON CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their Annual Consolidated Report along with audited accounts
of the Group for year ended June 30, 2008 for your consideration and approval. The Olympia Group

cgmprises financial statement of Olympia Spinning & Weaving Mills Limited and Olympia Power Generation
(Pvt) Limited.

The Directors report on the performance of Olympia Spinning & Weaving for the year ended 30 June,2008
has been presented separately.

GROUP RSULTS

The operating results of the period under review has resulted in net profit before taxation of Rs.5,244,284/-
with net sales of Rs.2,742,477,972/-

For Year ended
June 30, 2008
Rupees

Gross Sales
Gross Profit 2,742,477.972
Proft from Operation 234,892,936
EPS 152,336,466
(0.79)

OLYMPIA POWER GENERATION (PVT) LIMITED

Olympia Power Generation (Pvt) Limited, groups subsidiary eams good profit of Rs 26 million with sales
of Rs 198 million and remain successful in achieving its target. The company is expecting continued
inflationary pressure during the next year & plans to cope with it by considering alternative source of
revenue and internal cost savings.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

| would like to place on record the Co-operation shown by our Bankers for their support and without their
co-operation, the present results could not have been achieved. The loyalty and devotion of the Staff
mem::hers and the workers towards the Company is also one of the major factor for achieving the present
resulis.

For and on behalf of the Board

Karachi: 27" September, 2008 WAQAR MONNOO
(Chief Executive/Director)
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have examined the annexed consolidated financial statements comprising consolidated balance
sheet of Olympia Spinning & Weaving Mills Limited (the holding company) and its subsidiary
company as at June 30, 2008 and the related consolidated profit and loss account, the consolidated
cash flow statement and the consolidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes
forming part thereof, for the year ended June 30, 2008. We have also expressed a separate opinion
on the financial statements of Olympia Spinning Mills Limited and its subsidiary company. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the holding company’s management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our examination.

Our examination was made in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing and
accordingly included such tests of accounting records and such other auditing procedures, as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements examined by us present fairly, except as
mentioned in note 14.1, the company has not provided liability under cross currency swap contracts
loss of Rs. 61.46 (M). The amount has been declared as Contingent Liability in Note No. 14.1. The
company has filed a suit in High Court of sindh and obtained stay order against the settlement of
cross currency swap contracts on the vague provision of the contracts, had the provision been
accounted for, the loss would increase to Rs.76.48 (M), the financial position of Olympia Spinning
& Weaving Mills Limited and its subsidiary company as at June 30, 2008 and the results of their
operations for the year ended June 30, 2008.

MUSHTAQ & COMPANY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

KARACHI:
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Qlyrﬂpﬁﬁ @inniﬂg &feavi_ng Mil_15 Li_mi-teﬂ Olympia Spinning & Weaving Mills L

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE ET AS AT JUNE 30, 2008 ‘
JUNE 30, 2008 JUNE 30, 2007 ' -
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES NOTE RUPEES RUPEES PROPERTY AND ASSETS NOTE "U'EE S'g‘E‘;”““ JUNSE:
1 |
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES NON CURRENT ASSETS
Authorized capital i ' querlf. plant and equipment 15 :
13000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each. 130,000,000 130,000,000 Capital work in progress 16 . Eiggg;ﬁﬂ G
Lang term deposit 17 21 '495'??2
|ssued, subscribed and paid up capital 5 120,000,000 120,000,000 L
Revanue resarve 3,580,053 3.580,053
Capilal Reserva 44 665 822 . CURRENT ASSETS
Unappropriated loss {31,232 165) (23 g%q 375) Slores and spara parts and loose fools 18 18,166 150
137,013,710 99,629,678 4 T
Minarily interast & 31,880,185 Stock in trade 10 408 812 678
Surplus on revalualion of fixed assels T 795,934,764 853,782,870 ) =
NON CLURRENT LIABILITIES Trade debts - considerad good 20 133372 571
Long term financing & 359,141,075 370,084,011 Loans and advances 29 137,945,703 181
Liability against assets subject to finance lease g 128,946,783 153,265 967 Other receivables 27 14 060,003
Deferred liabililies 10 4,663,819 3,523,054 sl
CURREMT LIABILITIES i :
Trade and olher payables 1 403 858,404 302,869,208 Cash and bank balances 23 2,620,758 :
Interest | mark-up accrued on loans 12 27,848,098 22,047477 THLITTHE
Shart-term borrowings 13 526,965,655 592,569,977
Current portian of
- lang term financing 82,193,595 a0,A33,336
- lighilities agains! assel subject
1o finance lease 23,309.136 22,981,231
Provision for taxation L 44.694,958]
1,0%9,148,489 1,075,995,887
CONTINGEMGIES AND COMMITMENTS 14 - -
.f
2550728826 229631156 : ’ 2558726826 7
[ '
The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial slatements
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRE
Karachi: 27lh SEFTEMBER, 2008
ATth ANNUAL REPORT. 2008 40 A7th ANNUAL REPORT. 2008




Olympia Spinning & Weaving Mills Limited

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Sales (net)
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit

Distribution cost
Administrative expenses

Other operating income
Operating profit

Finance cost
MNet loss before taxation

Taxation:
Net loss for the year after taxation
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent
Minority Interest

Earning per share - Basic and diluted

29

30

31

For the year
ended June 30,
2008
RUPEES

2,742,477 972

{2,507,585,037 :

For the year
ended June 30,
2007
RUPEES

2,231,539,290
(2,016,704,534)

214 834 757

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Karachi: 27th SEPTEMBER,2008

(46,148,562) (48,193,506)
(38,604,599) (31,718,397)
2,196,691 4,408,984
(82,556,469) (75,502,919)
152,336,466 139,331,837
(147,092,183) (159,040,351)
5,244 284 (19,708,514)
(14,802,586) (14,301,725)
(9,558,302) (34,010,239)

(11,742,280)

2,183,978

(9,558,302)
(0.79) (2.83)
DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations (Mote: 33)
Taxes paid

Finance cost paid

Workers' profit participation fund paid
Gratuity paid

Long term deposits

MNet cash from operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets

Met assets of subsidiary net of cash acquired
Fixed capital expenditure

Capital work in progress.

Net cash (used in)/from investing activities

CASH FLOW FORM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long term finance

Short term finances

Repayment of lease liabilities

Met cash used in financing activities

Met increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year.

For the year For year ended
ended June30, June30,
2008 2007
RUPEES RUPEES
346,066,690 340,929,789
(10,848,711} (17,068,669)
(141,290,262) (155,998,821}
- (2,458,858)
(4,058,521) (3,355,267)
1,242 468 {1,459,702)
191,111,665 160,588,472
940,000 4,200,000
(74,443,038)
(10,039,187) (56,601,436)
(2,661,885) 8,900,000

(86,204,110)

(43,501,436)

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Karachi: 27 TH SEPTEMBER, 2008

-t

(19,582,677) {108,970,568)
(65,604,322) 19,757,136
(24,021,279) (64,842,919)
(109,208,278) {(116,220,030)
(4,300,724) BG7,006
6,921,482 6,054 476
2,620,758 6,921,482
DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Balance as al February 09, 2008
Share in nel assels as at the date of consolidation

Gift of Shares by shareholders of Olympia Powar
Ganeration(Pvi) Limited.

Loss for the period including share of actuarial loss
Transfarred from surplus on revaluation of fixed assets
on account of incremental depreciation charged in the
current year 2008

Balance as at June 30, 2008

Attributable o equity holders of the parent
PAID UP [REVENUE| CAPITAL UN- MINORITY| TOTAL
CAPITAL |RESERVE|RESERVE [APPROPRIATED| TOTAL |INTEREST| EQUITY
LOSS
- RUPEES ——

120,000,000 3,580,053 - (23,950,375) 99,629,678 99,629,678
29,777,216 29777216
- 44 665,822 44 665,822 44,685,822

= (14,251,996) (14,251,996) 2,102,969 (12,148,02T)

6,970,206 6,970,206

120,000,000 3,580,053 44 665 822 (31,232,165} 137,013,710 31,860 185 168 893,895

6,970,206

June 30, 2008
RUPEES

STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSES

Loss for the year
Actuarial (Loss) recognised

The annexed notes form an integral part of these

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Karachi: 27Tih SEPTEMBER, 2008

{11,742, 280)
{2,508, 716}
14,251,006)

financial statements

DIRECTOR
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4.1

a)

b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2008

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS:

Olympia Spinning & Weaving Mills Limited (the parent company) was incorporated in Pakistan as
a public limited company on October 28, 1960, and its shares are quoted on the Karachi Stock
Exchange. The main business of the company is manufacturing and sale of yarn. Olympia Power
Generation (Pvt) Limited (the subsidiary) was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company
on August 30,1994 The Subsidiary is engaged in power generation and sale of electricity. The
holding company holds 9,000 equity shares representing 60% shareholding by virtue of gift of shares
by directors of subsidiary at free of cost on 9" Febuary, 2008. The registered office of the company
is situated at E-3 Farzana Building, 1* floor, Block 7 & 8, Shaheed-e-Millat Road Karachi.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards
as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such Interational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as are nolified
under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies
Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the provisions of, or directives issued under the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall prevail.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as
applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of assels, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods. The areas involving higher degree of judgments or complexity or areas where assumption
and estimates are significant to the financial statements are as follows:

a) Employee retirements benefits- Note-10
b) Useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipment- Mote-5.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Change in accounting policy & method:

Change in cost formula for raw-material from annual weighted average to monthly average:
Based on new circumstances and huge variation in raw cotton prices, the company has changed
its cost formula for calculation of inventories from annual weighted average to monthly weighted
average. This change in accounting estimate is dealt under International Accounting Standard (IAS
8) “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”. Had the previous policy of
calculation of cost applied, the loss would have increased by Rs.34.473 (M) and carrying value of
inventory would be reduced by the same amount. The impact of changes of this estimate in future
periods Is"not disclosed because estimating the effect in future periods is impracticable.

Staff retirement benefit:

During the year the company has adopted the alternative approach of recognizing actuarial gain
and losses outside the profit & loss account through “Statement of recognized income & expenses”
in accordance with para 93A of 1AS-19 The prior year figure in balance sheet and profit & loss
account have been restated to account for the change in accounting policy in compliance with the
requirements of International Accounting Standard (IAS 8) “Accounting Policies, Changes in
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Accounting Estimates and Errors”. The change have no effect on the net profit/ (loss) of prior years.

42 Principles of Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the holding company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than ene half of the voting
rights. The consolidated financial statements includes Olympia Spinning and Weaving Mills Limited
and all companies in which it directly or indirectly controls, beneficially owns or holds more than
50% of the voting securities or otherwise has power to elect and appoint more than 50% of its
directors. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the date when control ceases.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their value at the combination date, irrespective of the extent of any minority
interest. The investment is measured at fair value by taken taking breakup value of Olympia Power
Generations (Pvt) Limited accounts as at 9" Febuary,2008 and crediting capital reserves. The assets
and liabilities arising from acquisition are as follows:

Property, Plant & Equipment Rs 144,660,676
Stores and Spares Rs 668,105
Loan and Advances Hs 14,399,178
Trade Debis Rs 33,347,853
Other Receivables Rs 44 855

Cash and bank balances Rs 1.531.849
Long Term Loans (Rs 87,856,828)
Obligation under Finance Lease (Rs 5,303,930)
Staff Retirement Benefits (Rs 143 .509)
Creditors, accrued & other liabilities (Rs 26,905,210}
Net Equity Rs 74,443,039

The carrying value of assets and liabilities acquired approximate their fair values. The assels and
liabilities of subsidiary company have been consolidated on a line-by-line

hasis and the carrying value of investments are eliminated against subsidiary share capital and pre-
acquisition reserves in the consolidated financial statements. Inter-company transactions, balances
and unrealized gains on transactions between group company is eliminated in full. Accounting
policies of the subsidiary have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency wit the policies
adopted by the Group.

Minority Interest
Minority interesis are that part of the net results of operations and of net assets of subsidiaries
aftributable to interests which are not owned by the parent company.

4.2 Functional and presentation currency. )
These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company's functional
currency. All financial information presented in Pakistan Rupees has been rounded to the nearest
rupees.

4.4 Defined benefit plan . , .
The company operates an unfunded gratuity plan for all of its permanent employees, who attain
the minimum gualification period for entitiement to gratuity. Provision is made on the basis of
actuarial valuation. The most recent actuarial valuation was carried out effective from June 30, 2008
using the_Rrojected Unit Credit Method.

Any actuarial gain or loss recognized during the period is accounted for under para 93A of 1AS-19
by recognizing whole amount of actuarial gain or loss in “Statement of recognized income and
expense "in statement of changes in equity.

4.5 Taxation
Current

Provision for current taxation is made on the taxable income, if any, after taking into account tax
credit and tax rebate available.
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4.6

4.7

48

Deferred

Deferred tax is provided in full using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization
or settlement of the camying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the balance sheet date.

The carrying amount of all deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced
to the extent, if it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the

Eunsideratinn to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the
ompany.

Provisions

A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resource embodyin
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made o
the amount of obligation.

Property, plant and equipment

Owned
Property plant and equiEment except land are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss, if any. Freehold land is stated at cost.

Depreciation on additions during year is charged on pro-rata basis when the assets are available
for use. Similarly the depreciation on deletion is charged on pro-rata basis up o the period when
the assets is derecognized. The company reviews the rate of depreciation, useful life, residual value
of assets for possible impairment on annual basis. Useful liver are determined by the management
based on expected usage of assets, expected physical wear and tear, technical and commercial
obsolescence, legal and similar limits on the use of the assets and other similar factors. Any change
in the estimates in future years might affect the carryinﬁ amounts of the respective items of
R‘:Dperty, plant and equipment with a corresponding affect on the depreciation charges and impairment.

aintenance and normal repairs are charged to income as and when incurred. Major renewals and
improvements are capitalized.

b) Leased Assets subject to finance lease

Assets subject to finance lease are initially recorded at the lower of present value of  minimum
lease payment under the lease agreement and the fair value of the leased asset. The related
obligations under the lease less financial charges allocated to future period are shown as a liability.
Financial charges are allocated to accounting period in a manner to provide constant periodic rate
of charge on the outstanding liability. Capitalized or leased assets are depreciated on the same
basis and on the same rate as owned assets. Income arising from sales and lease back transaction,
if any, is deferred and is amortized equally over the lease period.

c) Capital work in progress

d)

49

Capital work in progress is stated at cost and represents expenditure on fixed assets in the course
of construction and installation. Transfers are made to relevant fixed assets category as and when
assets are available for use.

Impairment of fixed assets

In accordance with 1AS 36, assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or  changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of these assets may be recoverable. Whenever
the carrying amount of these assets exceeds their recoverable amount, an impairment loss is
recagnized in the profit and loss account.

Stores, spare parts and loose tools ]

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined by moving average
method. Items considered obsolete are carried at nil value. ltems in transit are valued at cost
comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.
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410 Stock in trade
These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV) except waste which is
valued at NRV, cost is determined as follows:

Raw material Monthly average except those in transit
which are stated at cost comprising invoice
value plus other charge incurred thereon

Finished goods and Raw material cost plus appropriate
work  in process manufacturing overheads
Waste At net realizable value

Net realizable value signifies the selling price prevailing in the market less selling expenses
incidental to sales )

4.1 Trade debts
Trade debts originated by the Company are recognized and carried at original invoice amount
less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts. An estimated provision for doubiful debt is made
when collection of the full amount is no longer probable. Bad debts are written off as incurred.

4.12 Cash and cash equivalent : : :
Cash in hand, cash at bank and short-term deposits, which are held to maturity, are carried at
cost. For the purpose of cash flow statements, cash equivalent are short-term highly liquid
instrument that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in values.

413 Financial instruments
All the financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company
becomes a panr to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Any gain or losses on derecognition
of the financial assets and financial liabilities are taken to profit and loss account currently.
Financial assets are stated at their nominal value as reduced by the appropriate allowances for
estimating irrecoverable amount. Mark up bearing financial liabilities are recorded at the gross
proceeds received. Other financial liabilities are stated at their nominal value.

4.14 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities
A financial asset and financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if the company has a legal enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and intends
either to settle on net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

4.15 Revenue recognition
Sales are recognized on dispatch of goods to the customers. Dividend income is

Eecqgnized when right to receive dividend is established. Interest income is recognized on accrual
asis.

4.16 Derivative Financial Instruments
These are initially recognised at cost and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value. The
method of recognising gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. Derivatives (Other than designated as
hedging instrument) with positive market values (unrealised gains) are included in other assets
and derivates with negative market values (unrealised losses) are included in other liabilities in
the balance sheet. The resultant gain and losses are included in the income currently.

417 Borrowing cost
All markup, interest and other charges are charged to current income on an accrual  basis.

4.18 Dividend and appropriation to reserves )
The dividend distribution and appropriation to reserves is recognised in the period in which, these
are approved.

419  Related party transactions
The Company at arms’ length price using the method prescribed under the Companies Ordinance,
1984, camies out all fransactions with related parties.
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5 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

8.1

8.2

2,200,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
fully paid in cash

200,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
fully paid as bonus shares

9,600,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
issued as right shares

MINORITY INTEREST
Share capital

General reserve
Accumulated profit

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF FIXED ASSETS
Balance as at July 01, 2007
Add: surplus on revaluation of fixed assets during the year

Less:
transfer to unappropriated profit on account of incremental
depreciation for the year.

Balance as at June 30, 2008

LONG TERM FINANCING

From banking companies - secured
Loan 1 (Note:B.1)

Loan 2 (Note:8.2)

Loan 3 (Note:8.2)

Loan 4 (Note:8.3)

Loan 5 (Mote: 8.4)

Loan € (Mote: 8.5)

Loan 7 (Mote: 8.6)

From related party - unsecured

Directors (Mote: 8.7) Sub - ordinated
Associated company (Note: 8.8)

Current maturity of long term financing (Note: 8.10)

June 30, 2008

June 30, 2007

RUPEES RUPEES
22 000,000 22,000,000
2,000,000 2,000,000
96,000,000 96,000,000
120,000,000 120,000,000
90,000 i
6,000,000 .
25,790,185 -
31,880,185 R
553,782,970 561,120,029
252,122,000 -
795,904,970 561,120,029
6,970,208 7,337,059
6,970,206 7,337,058
788,034 764 553,762,970
£3,000,000 63,000,000
137,499,999 167,583,333
5,833,333 7,500,001
i 2,500,000
60,000,000 60,000,000
45,000,000 50,000,000
76,585,288 :
387,918,620 350,583,334
53,416,050 05,334,013
: 15,000,000
53,416,050 110,334,013

(79,193,585]

{90,833,336)

362,141,075

370.084,011

This term loan with UBL is for Rs.63.00 (M) for 5 years with a grace period of two years starting from August
31,2009 and payable in quarterly installments of Rs.5.25 (M) each. This is secured by equitable morigage of
Rs.575.396 (M) on fixed assts, and floating charge on current assts and personal guarantee of Directors. Mark-

up is @ 3 mopths Kibor + 2.5 % per annum, payable quarterly.

This revised Term financing with Askari Bank Ltd. for Rs. 137.5 (M) is for four years with a grace period of 21
months. Repayment is in 24 equal quarterly installments starting from 1st September 2008 and ending in Decembear
2011. This is secured by specific charge of Rs. 200 (M) over the machinery imported and purchased locally and
first pari passu charge of Rs. 310 (M) over plant and machinery and personal guarantee of directors. Mark-up is

i@ 6 months Kibor + 2.00% bps payable quarterly.
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8.2 (a)

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.10

This revised long Term financing with Askari Bank Ltd. for Rs. 6.25 (M) Is for four years and secured by specific
charge of Rs. 200 (M) on imported machinery-and Rs.310 (M) on plant and machinery along with other facilities.
Repayments is in 20 equal quarterly installments of Rs 0.416 (M) ending in December 2011. Mark up is SBP
refinance rate plus 2% payable quarterly.

This demand finance lean from Allied Bank Ltd. is repayable in monthly instaliments commencing from May-
2005 and carries mark-up @ 6 months kibor average ask side + 2% per annum, payable quarterly. This loan
is secured by ranking charge over fixed assets of the company to the extent of Rs.33.00 (M) in addition to
personal guarantee of sponsor Directors. Total facility amount is Rs. 24.5 (M).

This term financea from Soneri Bank Ltd has 12 months grace period and repayable in four half yearly installments
commencing from 1st July 2008 and ending on 1st January 2010 and carries mark up @ 6 months kibor +
2.65 % per annum, payable quarterly. Total facility amount is Rs. 60.00 (M) Charge on fixed assets of the
company is to the extent Rs.80 (M).

This demand finance has been rescheduled with My Bank Lid. having 6 months grace period and repayable
in 10 quarterly installments commencing from August 23, 2007 and ending on November 23, 2009 and carries
mark-up @ 6 months kibor + 4% with a floor of 15% wilh mark-up payable quarterly. Total facility amount is
Rs.50.00(M).Charge over fixed assets of the company Rs. 67(M).

This represents debt swap arrangements for converting lease finance of Rs. 100 (M) info Long term financing
(LTF-EOP) of Rs. 73.20 (M) under SBP's LTF-EOP Scheme and remaining portion into Term Finance facility
of Rs 26.78 (M) .The Long term finance carries markup at the rate of SBP portion of markup + 3% and is
payable in six half yearly installments.

The Term finance facility carries markup at the rate of six month average KIBOR + 2.75%. Both these facilities
are secured by 10% margin, first hypothecation charges over generators financed by the bank for Rs.135 (m)
and personal guarantees of directors of the company.

The above loan is unsecured and interest free and is not repayable in the next twelve months. This loan has
been Sub - ordinated to bank loan.

These represent unsecured finance obtained from an associated company carrying no markup and is not
repayable in the next twelve months

During the year the company has entered into cross curmency swap arrangements at different dates to hedge
the probable adverse movement in interest rates.Under the terms of these contracts at each swap date , the
company will receive KIBOR from the arranging bank in local currency & pays LIBOR plus Bank spread in
USD and settling the transaction on net cash basis. There has been no transfer of liability , only the nature of
the interest payments has been changed. As this hedging relationship is ineffective and does not meet the
criteria of hedge, this amangement does not qualify for special hedge accounting specified in IAS 38 "Financial
Instruments:Recongnition and Measurement”. The derivative cross currency swap payable as at June 30, 2008
has been marked to market and the resulting liability of Rs.61.46 (M) has not been recognised in profit & loss
account due to the reasons disclosed in Note 14.1.

Includes overdue installment of Rs. 9.16 (M).

LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE
June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007

RUPEES RUPEES
Minimum lease payments
Up to one year 40,206,572 41,028,685
More than one year but less than five years 149,185,386 179,476,230
-~ 189,391,958 220,504,915
Less: Financial charges :
Up to one year 1 E.ﬁ?.zﬁl 18,886,239
More than one year but less than five years 20,238,603 25,341,478
37,136,039 44,227,717
Present value of minimum lease payments
Up to one year 23,309,136 22,981,231
More than one year but less than five years 128,946,783 153,295,967
152,255,919 176,277,198
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9.1

10

101

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

1

12

The company has entered into lease agreements with various leasing companies. The lease agreement contains
bargain purchase option. Taxes, repairs and maintenance, insurance and other costs relating to the leased
assets are to be borne by the company. The rate of finance charges applied vary from 11.71 % to 18.38 %
{June 2007 11.35% to 14.09%) per annum. The above liabilities are additionally secured by security deposils
and personal guarantee of Director,

DEFERRED LIABILITIES
Staff retirement benefit-gratuity(Note:10.1 to 10.5) 4,663,819 3,523,054
Deferred tax (Note:10.6)

4,663,819 3,523,054

Movement in the net liability recognized in the balance sheet

Opening net liability 3,047,576 3,258,442

Expense for the year 4,774,764 3,619.879
8,722,340 6,878,321

Contribution paid §4.058,521= {3.355,26?E
Closing net liability BB, (DL,

Expense recognized in the profit and loss account excluding acturial loss

Current service cost 1,910,343 1,334,191
Interest cost 273,696 198,988
2,184,039 1,533,179

General description
The scheme pravides for terminal benefits for all of its permanent employees who attain the minimum qualifying
period. Annual charge is made using the actuarial technique of Projected Unit Credit Method..

Principal actuarial assumption
Following are a few important actuarial assumplions used in the valuation,

%
Discount rate 12 10
Expected rate of increase in salary - 5
Historical information 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

RUPEES RUPEES RUPEES RUPEES RUPEES
Present value of the defined obligation 4,216,919 3,523,054 3258442 2893776 4865582

The company has provided for the current tax based on normal provisions of the income tax ordinance
2001 However, the Company has not provided for deferred tax since the Company’s management expects that
in consonance with the past trends, future tax liabilities would continue to be finalised under the final tax Regime.
Therefare, any timing differences arising during the year are not expected to reverse in future periods.

June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007
RUPEES RUPEES
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade Creditors 94,278,398 78,775,937
Bills payable 292,168,084 214,339,022
Withholding tax payable 3,300 -
Worker's Profit Participation fund 1,398,471 -
Accrued expenses 16,010,151 9,754,248
403,858,404 302,869,208
INTEREST / MARK-UP ACCRUED ON LOANS
Long term financing 6,241,503 2,588,639
Short term running finance 21,607,595 19,458,538
27,849 098 22047 177
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13

1341

14

14.1

(a)

(b)

14.2

June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007
RUPEES RUPEES
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS ;
Secured-banking companies (Mote: 13.1) 526,065,655 592,569,977

The facilities for running finance available from various banks amounted to Rs. 846.5 (M) (June 2007:Rs 796.5
{M)) and carries mark-up ranging from 11.75% to 18.35% (June 2007:11.36% to 14.09%) per annum payable
guarterly. The above facilities are secured by pledge of raw cotton and hypothecation charge on stock and book
debts and personal guarantee of directors.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingency

The company has filed a suit in High Court of Sind and obtained Stay Order against settlement of cross currency
swap contracts of Rs. 830(M). entered into by the company during the year with a foreign bank. The company
mainly contest on vague provision of unwinding cost calculation , mismatched dates of settlement with it long
term loans repayments and other procedural non compliance of foreign bank. No provision of Rs 61.46 m has
been made in the financial statement as management strongly believes that the case would be decided in
company's favor.

Guarantee issued in favour of Southern Gas Co. Ltd, Karachi for Rs.32 500 (M) (2007: Rs.32,500 (M))

June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007
RUPEES RUPEES
Commitment
Capital Commitments for civil works 6,203,000 4,300,000
Letter of credit - import of cotton 202,880,738 179,598,347
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

152

r

COST / REVALUATIGN - |[4—————— DEPFRECIATION ————————¥ WILY
PARTICULARS T
AS AT | ADDITION | oo | TRANSFER AS AT RATE % | isar [rom o ey TR brprlad
01-07-20d7 (MELETION) INAOLUT) M-6-2004 01-07-2007 YEAR b h 30-6-2008 g i
OWNED
Lesse hald lund 424,578,000 282_122,000 AT, OO0 - = 76, 0000
Fuctory bulding on lesse hold Band 404,383,193 r 404,383,193 4 T4, 140654 13,200,342 87.358.9% 317,024,197
Flamt ancl machinery 953,314,447 6,151.373 L2, 794,500 1,062, 260,322 & 354,604,552 34967399 ILA04.734 422 166,685 GdBR63T
Orffice equipiment 6,549,034 1,230,025 - 7.779,964 0 1839,144 dea 817 3,305,961 4.474,003
Factory wools aind equipasent 4,677,559 13,500 - 691,059 11} 2178801 145,300 2,334, 1M 2_366,R68
Furnibure and fixiure 5881028 130,729 - - 6,011,757 1] 1.211,949 400,334 2312288 3,699,469
Motor vehicale T2O980 566,883 B.089,000 & 066,863 ui} 437,265 G90,721 5462226 5147815 2.919,045
(2,219,000 {1,501, 4548)
Arms and amamunition 36,500 - 36,500 10 28,775 T2 19,547 6,053
Electric and pipe titting 446,394,501 1946675 48,341,176 10 20,230 088 2810209 23,049,297 28201 479
1,846,545, 147 10,035,187 252,122,000 1002, 754, 500 2,218,270.834 450,510418 52,590,899 36465460 545604781 1672576051
(2,219.000) 8,989,000
LEASED
Plant and machinery 179,610,041 (102,754, 5000 176,815,541 ] 61,220,475 180,394 (32,504,734) 36,806,135 139,019,406
Motor vehicles 18357000 (%, 989.000) 9368 000 20 8,281,715 1,752,197 (5.462,226) 4571686 4,793,314
297.967.041 (111,783,500 186,183,541 69.502,150 9,932,591 (37066,960)  41,467.821 144.715,720
TOTAL RUPEES - 244 2,144,512, 188 10,009,187 252,122,004 2,404,454, 375 SLoJ031,608 62,6324 (1,501,494) 587,162,604 1,817.291,771
(2,219, MK1) - .
TOTAL RUPEES - 2MI7 1,869,251,279 6,513,070 1.959,641,M9 427.986,069 61,212,207 (3376,271) 485822008 1473819, N4
I, 122,440 -

Adjustment of leased machinery represents ransfer to owned assets o completion af ierm of lease.

Depreciation has been allocated as wnder:

Coat of wales (MNoge: 25)
Adininisirative expenses|Note: 27)

Had there been no revaluation the related figures of land and factory bublding 20 June 30, 2007 would have been as fallows.

Lesse hold Land
Fuctory building on leuse hold land
As ar 3nh June 2008

A an 30nh Junse 2007

30-Jun-08 3= Jun-07

RUPEES RUPEES
F31 2044 57,984,586
3319846 3227211
62632490 GL213 208

Cst Book Valoe
383.000 383,000
04,905 496 150,620,859
305,288 496 151,012,859
25, 288496 157,289,103

During the vear the company revalued its Jand which resulted in surplus of 252.122(M). The revaluation was carried out under market value basis by an independunt valuer Messers Imran Associate, The company revalued its
leasehold land in 2005 by Consultancy Support & services.Munagement Consultants, which resulted increase in net surplus of Rs. 151635 (M) . The compuny had further revalued its factory building in the vear 2006 by
Consultancy Support & Services, Management Consaliants, which resulted increase in not surplus of Rs, 122681 (M),




Olympia Spinning & Weaving Mills Limited

153 DISPOSAL OF FIXED ASSETS BY NEGOTIATIONS
Particulars Original Accumudated | Book Value | SalesProceed Made of Purchaser
- Cost Sals
VEHICLES _
SUZUKI CULTUS AEX-EG3 580,000 405,796 184,704 350,000] By Negoliaton | MR, SYED INAMUDDIN
D115 ANARKALI FLAZA SECTOR 54 NORTH KARACHL KARACHI
AFB- 580,000 410,248 176,752 200,000 Magaliaion | MR. IRSHAD AHMED
D P By NAGalskon | OUSE # 41235 SHAH FAISAL COLONY, KARACH!
580,000 309,138 F80.862 300,000) By Megatiaton | MR. KASHIF AKJAD
S R O Htpiaton HOUSE # 5-22M1,16TH STREET PHASE 1 D.HA KARACHI,
H 449,000 ATE B2 T2 188 80,000 Megaliafiol MR. SYED FARHAN AYAZ
itk By Negaliaton | LOUSE # A-255 BLOCK & 1, GULSHAN-E-IGBAL KARACHI
Total Rupees 2,219,000 1501494 17 506 940,000

16 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS-CIVIL WORKS

17

18

19

20

21

Opening Balance
Addition

Transfer

Closing Balance

LONG TERM DEPOSITS
Lease security deposits
K.EES.C.

Other deposits

STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS
Stores :
Packing material

STOCK IN TRADE
Raw material

Raw material in transit
Work in process
Finished goods
Waste

TRADE DEBTS

considered good
Export - secured
Local - unsecured

LOANS AND ADVANCES
Unsecured-considered good
Advances
To employees
Staff
Workers

To suppliers
To contractors
Short term deptisits
L/C payments
Advance Income tax
FED Receivables
Freight subsidy receivable

June 30, 2008

June 30, 2007

RUPEES RUPEES
3,301,528 12201528
2,661,885 =

= (8,900,000}
5963413 3,301,528

19,130,100 20,370,538

1,820,694 1,829,694

535,978 538.008
21.485.772 22 738,240
13,803,066 5,526,845
4,353,093 3,070,178
18,156,150 8,597,021
336,839,001 323,856,078
- 84,164,452

18,395,164 17,014,163
53,413,291 58,203,912
165,130 1,493 650
408 812 676 484 732,255
24,044,911 44,629,768
108,327 660 34,865,133
133,372 571 79,494 901
1,128,831 892 243
3,347,790 4,031,953
4,476,621 4,924,196

46,692,108 77,644 328

7,065,639 7,096,770

37.112.438 10,600,052
1,094,760 566,397
35,843,772 49,520,004
3,705
5,656,659 11,481,912
137,945,702 161,843,658
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22

23

25

251

252

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Sales tax receivable

Central excise duty receivable from banks
Others

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand
Cash at bank in current accounts

SALES

Local
Yam
Raw cotton
Waste

Export

Yarn

Brokerage and commission

COST OF SALES

Raw material consumed (Mote:25.1)
Packing material consumed (Note:25.2)
Stores and spares consumed (Note:25.3)
Salaries, wages and benefits (Mote: 25.4)
Power and fuel

Doubling Charges

Vehicle running and maintenance
Traveling and conveyance

Repairs and maintenance

Insurance

Miscellaneous overheads

Depreciation (Note:15.1)

Work in process
Opening
Closing

Cost of goods manufactured
Cotton Yarn purchase
Finished goods and waste
Cpening
Closing

Cost of sales
RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED

Opening stock
Purchases _

Closing stock

PACKING MATERIAL CONSUMED
Opening stock

Purchases

Closing stock

June 30, 2008
RUPEES

10,601,493
261,487

3,197 023
14,060,003

2,042,054
578,704

2 620758

1,035,943,346
215,151,204
114,083,619

17,014,163
18,395,164

1,365,178,168

[1.407,838,568 |

1,407 838,568
2,773,016,737

(30,538,765)

2742477972

2,046,480,275
47,306,935
27,067,113
114,216,498
189,940,841

793,018
73,186
4,236,537
8,188,011

587 513
59,312,644
2.498,202,571

(1,381,001)
2.496,821,570
4,646,588

59,697,562
(53,578.421)

6,119,141
2,507 587 299

408,020,530
1,975,298,836
2,383,319,366

(336,839,091}

2,046 480275

3,070,176
48,589,852
51,660,028

(4,353,093)

47 306,935

June 30, 2007
RUPEES

11,928,473
261,487
2672619

14 862 579

1,670,881
5,250,601

6921482

406,485,515
144,800,092
87,268,042

638,553,648

1,620,309.654

2,258,863,303

(27,324 013)

2,231,539,290

1,573,263,118
46,624,388
24,749,889
95,806,799
172,299,748
315,124
725,841
26,554
3,551,192
5,457,250
355,987

1,981,160,678

13,600,733
{17.014,163)

4134
1,977,747 448
59,610,420

39,044 228
29 o

(20,653,334)
2016, 704 534

404,717,209

1.576,566,440

1,981,283,649

(408 DZD,EﬁU; i
1,573 263.11

1,431,302

48,263,262

49,694,564

(3,070,176)

46,624,388

et —d e
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25.3 STORES AND SPARE PARTS CONSUMED

Opening stock
Purchases

Closing stock

254 |tincludes Rs. 2,184 039/- (June 2007: Rs. 1,533,179/-) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

26 DISTRIBUTION COST
Freight and cartage
Export Development Surcharge

27 ADMINISTRATIVE AND SELLING EXPENSES

Salaries and other benefits (Note:27.1)
Rent, rates and taxes

Electric gas and water

Postage, telephone and telex
Printing and stationery

Traveling and conveyance

Legal and professional
Newspapers and periodicals
Repairs and maintenance
Charity and donation (Mote:27.2)
Advertisement and publicity
Motor vehicle expenses
Entertainment

Packing Charges

Auditor's remuneration:

Audit fee

Half yearly review fee

Miscellaneous
Insurance Expense
Depreciation (Note:15.1)

27.1 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF

EXECUTIVE AND EXECUTIVES

Fp

and telephone at their residences,

27.2 Directors and their spouse have no interest in the donees,

28 OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Gain on disposal of fixed assels
Scrap sales
WPPFF
Purchase discount
Other receipts

29 FINANCE COST
Interest/mark-up on
Long term lpans
Interest expense on W.P.P.F
Bank running finance
Finance charges on lease

Markup Others

Markup recovered from subsidiary
Gain or loss on cross currency swap
Loc discounting and Bank charges

June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007
RUPEES RUPEES
6,194 950 7515173
34675228 22 761,56
40,870,178 30,276,734
(13,803,066} (5,526, 3453
27067113 24 749 88
42 656,963 44 277,915
3,491 599 3,915,591
46,14 48 igﬁﬁﬂﬁ
18,306,262 14,019,411
4,955,909 5,578,525
995,245 973,638
1,437,601 1,333,908
552 746 778,400
1,144,953 326,246
3.273.577 1,727,384
9479 10,000
771,835 712,895
5,000 -
167,918 114,344
937,426 1,081,912
1,160,995 792,984
20,827
242,000 175,000 |
75.000 75,000
317,000 250,000
678,501 185,962
&70,309 574,539
3,319,846 3227231
— 38,604 601 31,718,396

The Chief Executive and Directors of the company have waived their remuneration and meeting fee.
The Chief Executive and two directors of the company are provided with free use of company maintained car

222 494 1,453,831
3,372,668 2.779.332
(1,398,471)
g 9,635
: 106,186
2,196,691 4 ]
45,041,993 580,

8 37.840
75.451,106 84,434 463
17.633.213 452831

138,126,312 144 605,959

: 367,500
(2,619,050) -
158463693259} 14,066,892

147.092.183_  _159.040.351
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30 TAXATION
Current (Note 30.1)
Prior
Deferred

301 Current

June 30, 2008  June 30, 2007
RUPEES RUPEES

14,284,234 24,006,591

.918,352 -

' = {9,704 866)

14 B02 586 14,301,725

The provision for taxation has been made in these financial statement on the basis of section 169 of the income

tax ordinance,2001
31 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC & DILUTED

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the company
Profit for the year in rupees

Total number of ordinary shares

Eamings per share in rupees- Basic and diluted

32 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profit [(Loss) before taxation
Adjustment for non cash charges and other items
Depreciation
Financial charges
%Gain‘y’t_oﬁs on disposal of fixed assets
rovision for gratuity-net

Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes
(Increase)/decrease in current assets

Stock, Stores & spares

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Other receivables

Increase/{decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables

33 TRANSACTION WITH SUBSIDIARY/ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKING

(9,239,109)  (34,010,239)
12,000,00 12,000,000
(0.79) (2.83)
5,244,284  (19,708,514)
62,632,490 61,212,208
147,092,183 | | 159,040,351
(222,494) (1,453,831)
5,199,286 3,619,879
214,701,465 _ 222,418,607
219,945,748 202,710,093
66,350,441 | [(27,020,631)
(53,877,671) 11,324,355
11,856,399 22,839,931
802,576 1,711,627
25,131,746 8,855,282
100,989,196 131,451,113

346,066,600 _343.016.489

The related parties and associaled under takings comprise, local associated companies, directors and key
management personnel. Transaction with related parties and associated undertakings other than remuneration

and benefits to key management personnel under the term of their employment are as follows

Purchase of electricity (Note:33.1)
Discount availed on electric purchases

198,392,080

155,828,125
19,478,516

33.1 This amount represents the purchase of electric power from Olympia Power Generation(Private) Limited.

33.2 Transactions with associated undertakings/subsidiary are carried out by the company at arms length priceusing

the method prescribe under the Companies Ordinance, 1984.
34 PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION:

SPINNING

Total number of spindles installed

Average No. of spindles worked

Number of shifts

Actual praduction of the period in kgs
after conversion into 20/1 count
Installed capacity of the period in kgs
after conversion into 201 count

14,144 356
15,104 644

44,484
44,004

3
14,144,356

15,104,644

It is difficult to describe precisely the production capacity in textile industry since it fluctuates widely depending
on various factors. Such as count of yarn spun, spindle speed, twist per inch and raw material used etc. It
would also vary according to the pattern of production adopted in a particular year.

POWER
Installed Capacity 7 MW 7 MW
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k]

351

351

¥

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RELATED DISCLOSURE

VIELD /| MARK UF RATE RISK

Yoedd / mark wup rag risk is the risk that the valug of e Ginancial matrament will Mectuate dus bo changes in the market yicld! nmkmnm Semsilivily 1o )'nld :rrn.rk wp rale risk aniscs
from mismatches of fimancial asseis and liabdlities that mature or reprice in a given pericd. The C these sk 7 gies where significan

changes in gap posithon can be adjusted. The Company is exposed 10 yiekd mark up rate sk in respect Mlhfdlm-%

nieresimark up bearin
ore tham are (kD » TOTAL
Wi i i Sub total Swh fodal
| sns veer Bne vear nnf YEAr

RUFEES >

FINANCIAL ASSETS

i - - - 37,112,438 21495772 58 608,210 58,608 210
Trade debes . . = © 1333125 B 133372571 IJ}.%E..S'J;
Other receivabiles - = - 14,060, 005 - 14,0640, 003 14,160, 1HK
Cagh amd bank balamccs: - - - 2.620.']':'(;8 - 1AM, TSR Z:EIIJ.?SE

= x = 147,165,770 11.4%3.773 L6047 00 JORG6]54]

FINARCIAL LIABILITIES
Loans 79,193,595 30K, T8 024 IH7.918,620 - 3,416,050 3,410,050 441,334,670
Ii.l-ﬁb!'hlihmbmwm ta finance lese 13,309,136 128,946,783 152255919 - - - 152255919
Short term 26,905 655 - 526,968 055 - - - 426,963 635
Trade and other payubles

= = A0 E5H, 404 = 403,554,404 407 038 804
m.«m 437,671 %08 1067, 140, 194 400 558 44 33,416,050 457 274,454 1,524 414,647
T balance shoet ilems:

Bamk Guaranioes issucd - . - - -

Oriver commitments. - - - - - - 201, TES9TR
T
Total { mark wp rate risk sensitivity gap FETIC 2 e iid L
CHIF halenes shest gap (201,785,978)
inleresimark up bearin _ non isderesimark up bearin
Wiilkin Wlare than ;‘Iﬂh I Mare than . TOTAL
ey Sul tatal 5 Suh tadnl
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Dhepamsits = - . 10,600,052 ¥2.738,240 33338292 33338292
Trade debis - - - TAM 01 - T9A54, 901 79454 501
Oher reocivables - - - 14862579 . 14,862 57% 14,862,579
Cash and hank balances - - - 6,921 482 - 6,92] 482 6,921,482
3 5 = TELL30%. 355 FFRETIFLL FIFRL R LE] 154 QJ! ﬂ-l"
FINANCIAL LIABRILITIES
Loams 9,833,336 259,740,998 350,583,334 - 110,334,003 10,334,013 ARF17,347
wmnﬁ?mﬂm subiject 1o fimance lcase 22.9%1,231 153,295,947 176,277,198 . . - 176,277,198
irane 392,568,977 - S91.365.977 - - - 592.569,977
Trad: snd other payables - . . 302 BES 208 . 302,869, 206 300,569, 20K

T balance sheol itoms:

Bank Guarantees mssued . - - . - . 7,270,000
Mher commitmenis = - — o = x 1 74,721 995
Total (LI R]]
Tetal { mark up rate risk senshtivity gap i ; : : : 5] i :

Effective yicld / mark up ruie wis mentioned in e relovant males,

Comcentration of credil risk
Credit risk is the risk that anc party 1o a financial instrement will Eil to discharge an obligation and causes the other party 1o incur a financial loss. Concontration of credis risk srisc when
Featesres tha would cause tLu

& mumber of countorpartics ar on| in similar business activities or have similar coonoeic ahility Lnrmﬂmnﬁi:hﬂoﬂlgl]mtnbc:lmlhdrﬂ[ﬂwd
hfthnaﬂ in mmm&pﬂh of eaher conditzans. The Company atlermpls 1o control crodit risk by manitoring crodit exposurs, linaling trsnsaction with specific countespartiss and
the credit al

g ¥

Fair value of financial msiruments
The earvyng valee alall the financial instruments reported in the financial stsement approximese their fer value,

Farsign exchangs risk managoment

Fargign currency risk ariscs mainly where rﬂgluubksan]mbk.—s::m s W lansactens wath foreign The ges the nd:ﬁrmgj‘l.el'l:':mruuz of forwand
covers and believes that i {5 not exposed b significant exchange risk. As 21 mﬂmﬁmmmm&uwwmm dc b0 stremgibening ol the local csrency
sgaina forcign curmcncies.

Capital risk management
The ohjective of the company whes managing ﬂrlal is surpguanj its ability 1o continwe as a gmng concerm s thal it cn comtinug o provide retums for shareholders and benefil for
ali

caher stakcholders; and 1o maintain a sirong capitel base 1o suppan the 3 W

The company manages its capital stnuctan: by |M11|l.vnnn|_g reiura o et Riseds aind maly HI]JH!I.H'M'I‘ISIDﬂ im the Tight of changes in i Im aeder Lo Lain or adjust tho
capital siructure, the Company msay adjust the amown of dividend paid o the shareholders of issue new shares.

General

Corresponding figures have been reasranped and roclassificd, whenever nocessary, for betier presentation and disclosurs

Reclassification from Heclassilication to Amsunt

Trade Debis Laan & Advances

Local Debes Suppliers 55,300.129

Administrative & selling Expense Distribution Cost

Expan Devip, Sarcharge Expan Devlp, Sarcharge 3915519

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR IS5UE
The Board of dineciors ol the Campany have ssthotized these inancial sialements for issue on Scptember 27, 2008

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Karachi: 2Tth SEPTEMBER, 2008
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